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CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now in session.
Chair would like to introduce the Members that are present this morning. We do have
Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aloha.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Good morning, sir.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member Hokama, Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. And Chairman Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: From the--good morning--from the Administration, we do have Jeff Ueoka,
the Deputy Corporation Counsel.
MR. UEOKA: Good morning.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. And our Budget Director, Mr. Sandy Baz.
MR. BAZ: Aloha.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Aloha. And supporting the Committee, we do have Michele Yoshimura,
Scott Kaneshina, Josiah Nishida...Nishita, as well as Camille Sakamoto. Members, we do have
testifiers this morning. For those of you that are testifying, the Chair will allow you three
minutes for you to present your testimony. Chair will allow one minute to conclude. When you
come up to the lectern, if you can state your name, organization that you represent, and go ahead
with your testimony. Once you're done, if you could stay at the lectern for a few seconds,
Members may have questions for you. But before we receive public testimony, if all of us can
turn our cell phones to the off position or silent mode. Joining us at this time is Member Carroll.
Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. The first person to testify this morning is Lyn McNeff.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good morning, Robert.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Morning. I always like to make a grand entrance.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Might as well, and you come in style . . . (laughter).. .
ITEM BF-1:

PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2013 BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY OF
MAUI (CC 12-59 and 12-72)
. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .

MS. McNEFF: Good morning, Budget Chair Pontanilla -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning.
MS. McNEFF: --and Council Members. I understand how difficult your job is in deciding, making
these decisions. I just wanted to give you some information about MEO. We have been at the
same, level funding since 2008 and our expenses have gone up, our health care, our insurance,
our unemployment, workmen's comp, operating expenses have gone up. So we can't cover our
operating expenses and maintain the same level of services if we don't receive the increase that
we ask for. So I just needed you to know that, that we...I think we, you heard testimony that we
provide an excellent service to the community, that the clients are happy, and we just are asking
for 3 percent in order to cover our expenses. Regarding Lahaina Tutoring--you asked about that-we take the youth from the school to Boys & Girls Club. The youth that stay there for tutoring,
we cannot go back and pick them up and take them to their afterschool activities due to we do
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not have a bus over there. They have over a hundred children, youth that go, so we are unable,
our resources are stretched over there. We have dialysis runs, rural shopping shuttle, and
various...other runs that are already scheduled over there. So, I want to clarify that. And the last
thing is my staff sent you Be A Jerk magnets, so I'll hand them out to all of you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, questions for Ms. McNeff? Chairman Mateo, followed by
Mr. Hokama, followed by Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Ms. McNeff, good morning -MS. McNEFF: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --and thank you for your testimony this morning. Your 3 percent
increase, your request for 3 percent increase...the, the increase is for operations and program?
MS. McNEFF: It's for program. It's for...
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. None of it is for salary increases?
MS. McNeff: No. If you'll see the proposal we submitted in January to Housing and Human Concerns,
there was no increase in salaries.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You know, I, I've heard that you say that, you know, the community is
happy with your service, and I have heard no testimony to say otherwise. So obviously your,
your people and your entity does a good job. So for this 3 percent, is MEO willing to support tax
increases to pay for this additional 3 percent?
MS. McNEFF: Yes, I have supported tax increases for services. I think Maui's very lucky for the
services they get, and I know we have to pay for 'em.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. McNeff.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. And thank you, Ms. McNeff, for being
here this morning.
MS. McNEFF: You're welcome.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I carefully heard what you said and it, it kind of makes me nervous.
You're talking about the possibility that you cannot maintain services any...I mean you've
apparently told us that you've cut to the bone -MS. McNEFF: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --and when you talk about maybe having to reduce services, have you,
have you Plan B? I mean what would that be? I'm kind of concerned because I don't want to
lose services to the kids.
MS. McNEFF: Well, in the Head Start Program, it would be one center of 20 families that receive care
after 12 o'clock in order so the families can be in education, training or school--because you can
only cut one center at a time. It doesn't, you don't cut expenses unless you cut, close the center.
So it would be that. In Kahi Kamalii, it'd probably be one or two children that would be unable
to attend, and we'd have to reduce the number in Youth Services.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And so with the modest 3 percent, small amounts you're asking for, if
we could avoid this?
MS. McNEFF: Right. We didn't want to ask for any more than we possibly needed in order to...we,
we realize budgets are stressed. That's what we would need to maintain it, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much. I, I appreciate the information.
MS. McNEFF: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair. And thank you, Ms. McNeff, for being here. If
we cut and we don't restore that to the Mayor's level, what else would be cut? Would that, all of
what you've mentioned, anything else would be cutback or scaled back?
MS. McNEFF: Well -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Would any other services be scaled back?
MS. McNEFF: --well, the Enlace would be one less case manager, which would be less services to the
Hispanic community, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you, Ms. McNeff. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you again, Lyn.
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MS. McNEFF: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next testifier is Beth Mathias.
MS. MATHIAS: Good morning. My name is Beth Mathias and I am a member of the Board of
Directors and Chair of the Marketing and Developing, Development Committee for The Maui
Farm. I'm here today to ask for your continued support for The Maui Farm through funding for
the line-item grant for our Family Strengthening Program. On behalf the Board, we want to
thank you for your support for the mission and programs of The Maui Farm. The County has
supported the development and operation of The Maui Farm's programs over the years, and I am
here today to let you know just how important your continued support is to our agency and the
community members we serve--families impacted by domestic violence and economic
challenges who are homeless and in need of community support. The Maui Farm has requested
an increase in funding for Fiscal Year 2013 operation of our Family Strengthening Program.
This increase will bring us closer to the Fiscal 2010 funding level. We have had to make
difficult decisions over these times, and since the economic downturn began, The Maui Farm has
eliminated three staff positions, put a freeze on salary increases, put a freeze on the allocation for
employee retirement, and implemented employee furloughs at two days a month. We have also
improved and grown our Resource Development Program, and our fundraising activities have
resulted in an increase in donations and the number of individual and business donors who
support our important work. Our request for an increase in funding will support The Maui Farm
in continuing to provide services for the whole family, including the children as well as their
parents; and will support continuation of our volunteer program to recruit, train, and coordinate
unpaid staff to assist with service delivery, childcare services during parent participation, and life
skills training, parenting classes and activities related to education and employment goals. The
after school activities program for our children which includes support in completing homework
assignments, opportunities to learn healthy values and social and behavioral skills, as well as fun
activities on the educational farm that teach sustainable agriculture and environmental
stewardship. I've been a volunteer at The Maui Farm for a number of years, and I believe so
strongly in what we do. We, we've done everything we can, I believe, to reduce costs and, and
increase our services to the families that we, we have. The increased funds will help with
increased cost of items such as health care, utilities and insurance, repairs and maintenance and
other supplies. These funds will not, however, be used for any salary increases which remain at
2009 levels.
MR. KANESHINA: Three minutes.
MS. MATHIAS: Your support for an increase in funding for the coming fiscal year will go far in
supporting our efforts to sustain our programs and meet the ever-increasing needs of the
struggling families we serve. Our intensive service equals significant outcomes. Please, we ask
you to support our request for an increase in financial support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Member Baisa.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 2, 2012

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Ms. Mathias, for being here. It's always good to
hear from the board members because, you know, the responsibility for making the bucks come
in stops with the board.
MS. MATHIAS: Exactly.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And I know that you are very much aware of that, knowing your history.
But let...can you give us some ideas about how the Board has assisted with fundraising?
MS. MATHIAS: As the Chair of the Marketing and Development Committee, I've been very involved
in that, and we've had an intensive...what we call donor cultivation. Some events that we bring
in potential donors, we do a lot of site visits at The Maui Farm, giving people--we're one of the
best kept secrets--and giving, giving individuals and service organizations an opportunity to just
see the amazing work and what we're actually doing up at The Farm. We have been able to
really leverage the funds that the County provides. We're now Maui United Way, very proudly a
Maui United Way agency, and those funds have helped us leverage in our fundraising and, and
grant writing capabilities. So...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much. I think it's important when we talk about
nonprofit funding, that we talk about leveraging, because I think it's pretty much well known
that the dollar given to the nonprofits is multiplied many, many times. So thank you very much.
MS. MATHIAS: Yes, thank you. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the testifier? Chairman Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Ms. Mathias, good morning and thank you
for your testimony. Would you have an idea of what your organization's total budget is?
MS. MATHIAS: You know, I'm sorry, I don't have that exact information, but our Executive Director
Paula Ambre is here today and can address that question if you'd like.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Do you, do you know how many families you service in a
year?
MS. MATHIAS: Well, you know, because our programs are limited by our capacity, unless we build
more homes we can't really increase the number of...that we serve in our residential programs,
but...and the numbers change we, with the homes that we have. Some are multiple families
living in homes, like a roommate situation, and, and because it changes...as often as we can
move those families out and transition them out, I, I don't have that exact number today.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Ms. Baisa?
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, no. Any more questions, Members? Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. I need to be fair, I asked the first nonprofit. So, so same with MEO,
you're willing to advocate and pay for more taxes to pay for your programs?
MS. MATHIAS: Absolutely.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Questions, Members? Any more questions? Member Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And thank you, Ms. Mathias, for being here.
Kind of a follow-up to Mr. Hokama's question is...I'm not sure if you heard him say "advocate",
which means tell all your friends and family and, and whatnot that their little, small increase will
help your organization. 'Cause if this happens, we're gonna need the support of everybody who
comes up here and asks for more money. We are gonna need their support. So you have to talk
to other people, not just you saying yes.
MS. MATHIAS: I have a loud voice.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: She does.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Seeing none, thank you again.
MS. MATHIAS: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next testifier is Cesar Gaxiola.
MR. GAXIOLA: Good morning, Chair and -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning.
MR. GAXIOLA: --good morning, Council Members. My name Cesar Gaxiola, the Executive Director
for the J. Walter Cameron Center. I provided testimony to you back in April 23 rd on behalf of
our request, and I got asked to provide additional information, which I did the following day, the
24th. And...I think you received a letter from me or narrative, an attachment of the list of
agencies that we have at the center, square footage, how much each agency pay per, per month
and annual basis, maintenance charge. And then you also received our budget for the 2013. And
so I just wanted to, to share that we provide. The other thing, too, is looking at the discussions
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having taken place at the floor, you know our request is of $90,000 and this is in order to assist
us with our annual budget. Any, any cuts or anything like that, I will definitely have to laid off
two of my staff. I did cut down three positions from full time to part time. So, I'm going to be
looking into probably two and, who knows, maybe three. I do definitely...we, you know, we can
increase the assessments to the agencies. However, if we do something like that, it would take
an average of three to six months for the return to come back. And so, you know, that, that's
something to take into, into consideration. So with that, I just wanted to say thank you for the
opportunity to speak in front of you, and thank you for all the other work that you're doing.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I understand your intent, Cesar, and, and I can appreciate it from one
perspective. But from a funder's standpoint, I don't think you give us a fair representation of
your entity's needs, yeah. So when you're budgeting for your entity, not your tenants, your
entity, I think it's much more fair for your board and for people like us to see exactly what you
need to do to get from your tenants to at least break even and then find ways to, you know, either
change tenancies or what to make it work. But I don't think you should come to us to take care
of the deficiency in how you folks structure your budget so you don't have to pass it on to your
tenants. And for me it is just how I, you know, my view of processing and how to create the
budgets. I think that would be fair for everybody if you folks might consider an adjustment in
how you present the situation.
MR. GAXIOLA: The request is, is very minimum and, you know, if you look into the whole, the whole
perspective, this is agencies providing services to our community And, and I understand where
you're coming from, I, I can see that. But at the same time it is...we're there to provide services
for these agencies, because otherwise if you look at it from the client perspective, do you want
them driving from Kihei to Hana to all over the place to seek services when they are in one
central location, one place, one stop? I hear many times, many times you're talking about
transportation. This is one of those solutions. They go to one place and they can access many
agencies, many programs many programs at once with, without driving around, and many of
these clients don't have transportation.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: How you do your operation, Mr. Gaxiola, you know, that's your entity's
business, yeah. How do you come to us to explain and how you want us to fund for the situation
that you folks create through your budget and dealing with your tenants--that is, that's your guy's
business, yeah. I'm just saying that, for me, it makes me wonder how well, then, the host entity
is being operated through its board. 'Cause I don't think that's the right way to approach
budgeting in my perspective. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any more questions, Members? Mr. Victorino, followed by Ms. Baisa.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, thank you. And thank you, Cesar, for being here. Let me ask
you, Cesar, these monies that we allotting for Cameron Center, how that, how is that utilized?
What is it utilized towards?
MR. GAXIOLA: Thank you. Sony. I, I thought you was going to say something else.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, sorry.
MR. GAXIOLA: We, we're look into the different large maintenance items like, for example, this past,
well, this current year actually 'cause we're still, we're still there, we're looking into some of the
areas that we, we haven't done, for example, like paint the staircases. They need to be, you
know, safe for the clients and stuff like that. Working into some of the, the fencing areas. And
basically it's just maintenance and repairs. You know, it's a facility that's been around for 40
years, and when it comes down to it, you know, we have to do the maintenance. And with a
complex of that size, even though it's not that large, but anything you do, you know, just to
dispose rubbish, for example, is $30,000 a year, you know. Even though we did the photovoltaic
and we getting savings, we still paying over $200,000 in electricity. And that's, you know, that's
another story, but, you know, because the PUC has some limitations on the photovoltaic. But,
you know, whatever we do, you know, is, is...it's like a big house...if you paint one area, it's,
you know, three, four thousand dollars even though you get the three bids and, and all those
different, you know, checking all the prices and everything with different vendors. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And also your therapy pool and all that, the upkeep of that is very
important because that is the only one that we have here in Central Maui, if I'm correct.
MR. GAXIOLA: That, that's correct. And, and then we have to consider the...we have to keep the
place clean, safe, and well maintained, because we have an average of 40 to 60 clients walking
the property every single day. That's their exercise, that's their outing. They live in, in homes
nearby. During the daytime they come to Cameron Center and that's their outing being there and
in order for them to, to proper walk and everything, they have to do exercises during the day, and
they do those exercises in Cameron Center. So it's more than just housing the agencies, but, but
it's also being a facility for these type of clients. They, they have those needs, and we're the
only facility like that in the whole State of Hawaii.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Understood, Mr. Gaxiola.
MR. GAXIOLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I, I have no, no qualms in, in helping in this area, and we'll do our
best. But just so that the public understands the importance. I think this is the key right now, it's
your chance to let the public know why if we have to raise rates to help augment some of these,
the importance of these programs and the facility and what it means to County of Maui, yeah.
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MR. GAXIOLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So thank you, Mr. Gaxiola. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. And thank you, Cesar, for being here this
morning. First of all, I'd like to disclose that I am a member of the J. Walter Cameron Center
Board, a very proud member, and the board has tried very, very hard to maintain fiscal
responsibility there. We inherited, when I got there, an aging elephant that was in its over
40 years old and had not been properly maintained, and so a reserve study was done by reputable
people, and the requirements to bring the facility up to par and maintain it in the future were
identified. And so the board has been on a quest to try to raise $3 million, which is no small
thing for an agency as tiny as that, with a board as tiny as Cameron Center's board. And I think
that we have responsibly reduced expenses as much as we can, and the philosophy that was
started by J. Walter Cameron, who the center is named after, was to always try to keep the
assessments as low as possible to the tenants who are all nonprofits. And it really makes no
sense to increase the assessments because those nonprofits are all gonna be here asking for that
money. The list we have will double because they'll all be here saying we need to pay Cameron
Center, so give us more money. It's either going to come out of one pocket or its going to come
out of another. We do as much fundraising as we can, we write as many grants as we can, and
we've done everything responsible to cut expenses. When Cesar talks about cutting any more
staff, I'm telling you we can't do it. How many staff do you have, Cesar?
MR. GAXIOLA: Three full-timers, including myself, and four part-timers.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And who are those people, what are those positions?
MR. GAXIOLA: Basically maintenance and secretary, and stuff like that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So you don't have any luxurious positions?
MR. GAXIOLA: I wish.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah. I don't think that...you know, it's a point of diminishing returns.
I don't think any more can be cut, and if the philosophy is that we're going to go to the
nonprofits, then that has to be changed. But it has always been that we try to protect the
nonprofits and not ask them for more money considering that we've held their funding and cut it
year after year after year. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the testifier? Mr.,
Chairman Mateo.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah, thank you. Cesar, good morning and thank you for your
testimony.
MR. GAXIOLA Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Can you tell me what Cameron Center's total operation budget is?
MR. GAXIOLA: Eight hundred and forty-one thousand dollars per year...well, this year.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. And currently, do you have R&M, a repair and maintenance
fund?
MR. GAXIOLA: Yes, we do.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And that fund normally generates what kind of money?
MR. GAXIOLA: When you say fund, within the budget or what do you mean?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: The...your repair and maintenance fund.
MR. GAXIOLA: It's included in the total budget, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah. And from your total budget, how much of the total budget is
taken out so you have an R&M fund?
MR. GAXIOLA: Let me look. It's probably over $200,000.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. And that fund, does, does any of your tenants' rent apply to the
maintenance and repair?
MR. GAXIOLA: There is no rent. It's a monthly assessment and...
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: The, the "monthly assessment" and "rent" is primarily the same thing.
So any of that money, is that taken and applied to a repair and maintenance?
MR. GAXIOLA: Yes, it is. And I just want to say that it's, it's not. According to IRS, it's two
different things.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Well, that's your opinion. Thank you very much.
MR. GAXIOLA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Ms. Cochran.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And good morning, Cesar.
MR. GAXIOLA: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So, you know, I'm looking in our budget book here and under
J. Walter Cameron Center, funding will be used to provide rental assistance to the resident health
and human service agencies. So there seems to be some type of rental going on here.
MR. GAXIOLA: I guess when we submit that to the Department, then the Department did their changes
on how, whatever. But what we submit is for monthly assessments, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Space assessment fees -MR. GAXIOLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --I think you called it one time.
MR. GAXIOLA: For us because we're under IRS 501(c)(3), we cannot use the word "rental". But, you
know, when you go out into the community, like Chairman say, it's the same thing; but
according to IRS it's not. So, you know.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And do these tenants have like a CAM fee added into their space
assessment fees?
MR. GAXIOLA: They do.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: They do?
MR. GAXIOLA: They do, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Maybe they can share into the R&M, maintenance.
MR. GAXIOLA: Yes. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Cesar, just a fast question. Yeah, Members, you know, I belong
to the Facility Maintenance Committee for Cameron Center, you know, and as Budget Chair, I
just wanted to let you know in regards to my involvement with Cameron Center. My question to
you, Cesar, is that the number of tenants that you have, and, and we're going to research this,
would you know if any of the tenants had come to the County in regards to their rent?
MR. GAXIOLA: No, they, they haven't and I definitely can also research on that, because when any
nonprofit comes to you, it comes to provide services and activities to their clients, not necessarily
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to just focusing to assessments or rent or whatever you want to call it. And so you do provide
grants to about five or six nonprofits in the Cameron Center, but those funds are utilized for
services and activities. And if you look into the contracts that you have with those nonprofits,
the administration fee you that have in there, I believe it's up to like 10 percent at the most. So
there is no way they can use those funds just to pay the monthly assessments.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll follow up on that. And just came to my mind in regards to some
of the nonprofits that have come over here that are tenant of yours.
MR. GAXIOLA: Sure.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
MR. GAXIOLA Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, are there any more questions? Okay, seeing none, thank you.
MR. GAXIOLA: Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next testifier is Mike Miyamoto.
MR. MIYAMOTO: Good morning, Members. My name is Mike Miyamoto. I'm the Deputy Director
for the Department of Environmental Management, and I'm here this morning to ask for your,
your consideration for three areas and maybe clarification on a fourth area. The first area is on
the topic that we had spoke on yesterday--Page 4 of the, the proposal on Wastewater Operations
Program. The...I am asking consideration for two cargo vans and one compact utility vehicle.
The two existing vans are used in our electrical maintenance section that has specialized
electrical equipment that we utilize for doing repairs, regular repairs and emergency callouts.
The vehicles currently have, one van has about 106,000 miles and the other one has 120,000
miles on it. Their major maintenance costs over the recent month, recent years have exceeded
700, $7,500 each vehicle. One van is in need of a new transmission and the other one needs a
new roof on it. We've done some makeshift repairs to repair the roof right now. The compact
vehicle, utility vehicle that we're requesting to replace, not replace, but for is to replace an
existing van that is used by our lab services that does the lab testing for our, for all of our
wastewater treatment plants. That van is used to transport staff to do the test, to grab samples
and to transport the samples. That vehicle has over 169,000 miles on it right now. Recent major
maintenance totals about 3,500, and the vehicle still doesn't have air conditioning, it need, it's in
need of new tires, and it's in need of a new transmission. The second area is on Page 4 of the
Solid Waste Administration Program. There's listed salary cuts of $16,812 in the A Account.
It's not just that account that's being cut, because when you look at the benefits also, the benefits
total up about $11,381, for a grand total of $28,000 that would have to be found in that budget to
support the position. There's 12 positions in that Administration Program. There are no
vacancies, so there's no salary savings that could help fund for the, fund these areas. The third
area is on Page 5 of the Solid Waste Operations Program. Under the request for services, we are
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asking for consideration for $258,010 to be restored. The funds are to rebuild an existing
Caterpillar compactor at the landfill. The rebuilding will help to extend the life of the this
Caterpillar compactor from 7 to 10 years, which is the typical lifespan of a compactor. The cost
of replacing this compactor is about $721,000, and that would give us about the same lifespan,
seven to ten years. The one area that I want clarification on, Mr. Chair, is that regarding, on
Pages 28 and 29 where four Central Maui Landfill Projects were transferred from the Bond Fund
to the Lapsed Bond proceeds. In the transfer, it looks like there was a decrease of $60,000. I just
need to, wanted to confirm whether that was done intentionally or if, or if it was an error. I,
II. .that's all I'm asking for clarification on that issue. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Mr. Miyamoto?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, thank you. My, my understanding of that 60,000, Deputy, is that that
was a decision made by the Committee, recommendation. That's not an error. And can you tell
the Committee why in this current year's Budget you don't have additional funds to take care of
some of the needs you just spoke to us about. And I just bring that up because, like your sister
departments, after we got, they got turned down exactly one year ago, there was a lot of
unauthorized purchases done. Okay? So obviously departments have monies somewhere. What
about your Department?
MR. MIYAMOTO: We have two divisions, our Wastewater Division and our Solid Waste Division.
The Solid, the Wastewater Division pretty much self-funds based on the fees that are charged for
the users of our sewer system. So the four, the three vehicles that we're looking for or we're
asking for consideration, we can continue to repair them. I mean we do have the monies to
continue to repair them. But I, we're, we're thinking that in the long run it would better to
replace these vehicles rather than continue to spend this heavy amount of money in the
Maintenance Program. If we get the vehicles in the Maintenance Program, there may be some
savings down the road that could be transferred into Carryover/Savings. But they're self-funded,
so that would be. . .pretty much withdrawn from the, the...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So you have money to repair, but not enough to replace?
MR. MIYAMOTO: There is, there is money to replace it. The decision whether or not we had put in
for those vehicles, this body has chosen to cut them out.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no, no, this year's Budget.
MR. MIYAMOTO: Oh, this year's Budget? No, because this year's Budget, our electricity costs are
running higher, we're finding that electricity--typically we might have some Carryover/Savings
in our electricity fund, but this year the electricity fund has gone up.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you for your responses, Deputy.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So, Mike, what you're saying is that there is no
Carryover/Savings from the Solid Waste area?
MR. MIYAMOTO: The Solid Waste Fund shows about a $3 7 million Carryover -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
MR. MIYAMOTO: --and a majority of that is based on, in talking with the Budget Director, is because
of the unanticipated additional revenues that we've, we've received. We can't control, you
know, the revenues that we receive. We charge for landfill tipping fees and we have residential
refuse collection. The residential refuse collection, we can control 'cause we know how many
customers we have. But at the landfill, we can't control how much trash people bring in, what
they're choosing to dump at the landfill. So revenues were up. If you look at the, the amount of
Supplemental Transfer from the Bond, General Fund, this year it's actually gone down 2.9
million. Last year it was over 8, 8.9 million. This year it's down around 6 million, little over 6
million. So we've decreased the, the General Fund subsidy by about 2.9 million.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. You, you know that information that you read off from the sheet
that, sheets that you have, can I have a copy of that or can we have a copy of that?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Sure.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Members, any more questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you again, Mike.
MR. MIYAMOTO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next testifier is Tom Croly.
MR. CROLY: Aloha, Chair. Aloha, Committee. I'm Tom Croly. Today, I'm speaking on my own
behalf. You'll hear from me on Thursday on behalf of the Maui Vacation Rental Association.
I'm a numbers person. For me, numbers are not a scary thing and they're not confusing. For
me, numbers can tell a story. You just have to know how to read the story they tell. The number
I want to talk to you about today is the number proposed by the Budget Chair for the
Commercialized Residential tax rate. The proposed $5.20 per 1,000 is an increase of $1 per
1,000 or approximately 25 percent over last year's rate. Taken by itself, the story this number
tells to those subject to paying it is they're being picked on. It says to others who might want to
consider getting a Bed and Breakfast Permit, don't bother, the County will make you pay dearly
for it. But you all know that I'm not someone who looks at things from just a single dimension.
I try to see all sides and consider it from a broader perspective. And here's the perspective that
I've gained over the past two days looking at this number. The Commercialized Residential tax
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rate applies to 64 homeowners who have made application, jumped through all the hoops, and
successfully been granted a Bed and Breakfast Permit. It allows them to have bed and breakfast
use in the home where they live. This tax rate also applies to five other properties where owners
do not make their full-time residence, and they, they've been granted a Conditional Permit
allowing short-term rental use. These properties should not be in the Commercialized
Residential tax rate, and it will be incumbent upon this Committee to set a category and a proper
rate for those properties and the ones that will soon be granted Short-Term Rental Permits at, at a
future meeting. But that's not the discussion for today. The numbers tell me that the 64
homeowners in the Commercialized Residential tax category paid a total of $481,000 in real
property tax over the past two years, and that this amount is $270,000 more than what they
would have paid if they didn't have their permits, if they had just been Homeowners. About
128,000 was in Fiscal Year 2011 and 142,000 additional tax in 2012. Under the Chair's
proposed tax rate, these same 64 homeowners will be asked to pay a total of $314,000 in real
property taxes for 2013, and that would represent an increase of 184,000 over what they would
have paid under the Chair's proposed tax rate for Homeowners--because without their permits
they would be Homeowners. I've tried to understand the logic behind this, what I consider to be
unjustifiable increase. Some have suggested to me that it was for the additional enforcement that
has been promised in this area. And while I don't think it's fair for those who've been doing the
right thing, to be the ones to pay for the enforcement of those who are not doing the right thing, I
do ask what about the $280,000 that these people paid over the past two years or the 130,000
additional dollars that these people would pay next year by just keeping their tax rate flat?
Couldn't that be used for the enforcement if you're looking for a, for a pool to go to for those
funds?
MR. KANESHINA: Three minutes.
MR. CROLY: The Commercialized Residential and Homeowner tax classes are linked They're linked
because in order to be granted a Bed and Breakfast Permit, you first must qualify as a Maui
County homeowner. The, the permit that they're granted allows them the privilege to use some
portion of their home for short-term rental use. For some, this privilege is the ability to use as
little as a single bedroom, for others it might be as much as six bedrooms, but the average B&B
has about three bedrooms Therefore, as the Homeowner rate goes, so too should the
Commercialized Residential rate. And you folks have already heard me say that I support an
increase in the Homeowner rate. I support increasing it from the $2.50 that it's at now, up to
$2.75, as, as the Chair has proposed. I would then, therefore, conclude that I support a 25 cent
increase in the rate charged to the Commercialized Residential category. Anything more than
that would be unjust and unfair. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for Mr. Croly? Mr. Couch, followed by
Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Thank you, Mr. Croly, for being here. You
mentioned a 25 cent increase for...you would support a 25 cent increase because there is a 25 for
Commercialized Residential, because there was a 25 cent increase in Homeowners. But there is
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a different percentage there. The 25 cents for the Homeowners is a 10 percent increase, so that
would equate to a $4.20...or I mean a 42 cent increase in Commercialized Residential. Would
you be supportive of something like that?
MR. CROLY: No, I would not and I'll explain why.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. CROLY: If you, if you constantly move everything by a percentage, the guys who are at the
high-end are going to get hit a whole lot harder than the guys who are at the lower end. For
example, the....if, if we talked about the, the timeshare folks, okay, and we just said ah, we just
want 5 percent from you. Five percent is 75 cents per 1,000. That's a real amount, that 75 cents
per 1,000 is, is a very large sum that, that you're then asking them to pay. But we say we want 5
percent from Homeowners, that's 10 cents. Ten cents is almost nothing, nobody's going to even
notice what a 10 cent difference is. So those differences between those over, over time get
bigger and bigger and bigger. And that's exactly what has happened, it's that philosophy that
has put us so out of balance with, with where our, our tax rates are now. We have the
commercial-end of our businesses carrying so much of the load and the homeowners, really, are
getting away scot-free. And again, the...what I'm talking about here with respect to bed and
breakfasts, there is a commercial component to it and there, and people are willing to pay an
additional tax for that commercial component. But let's not forget, these are the folks' homes, so
there is that homeowner component. So there's a balance that has to be struck between them.
When we determined what the rate should be or when, when we came up with that a couple
years ago, there was a differential. The differential was $1.50 between the Homeowner rate and
the, and the rate paid by Commercialized Residential. But not only $1.50, there was also the, the
loss of the Homeowner exemption, so that, that make, made that a much bigger difference. If the
difference stays in that $1.50, it jumped to $1.70 last year, okay. But if that, when that difference
becomes much greater, we've now lost all equity between those two classes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. One more question, Chair. You know, a lot of the people are
saying well, you know, this, it's a commercial business, you, you're stepping into a commercial
business, why wouldn't...you know, and you guys are making...you wouldn't be in it if you
weren't making a lot of money.
MR. CROLY: . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Why would anybody, I mean why should we give a break to somebody
who's getting in a commercial business in a residential area?
MR. CROLY: Good, good question. If you were changing the zoning, if you were saying to someone
who wanted to, to have a Bed and Breakfast Permit on their house, we're going to give you a
Change in Zoning. You're going to have Commercial zoning. You can do anything that a
commercial business can do. They should be taxed like a commercial business because they
would be able to build a whole lot more density on their property, they would be able to have
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concessions coming in and out, they would have a profit potential that would be huge. But that's
not what's said for a bed and breakfast. It says you may use this portion of your home, which,
again, could be as little as 10 percent of their home, under this whole set of conditions. And
presently, I'm in the process of jumping through the hoops that we have to do every time we get
our, our permit renewed--and there's a bunch of angry, ugly people out there saying, "why are
you picking on us like this?" Any other business doesn't have to jump through those hoops.
You're making us jump through all these hoops just in order to use this, this one, you know,
room as a, as a short-term rental. So, no, I don't think there is an equation between the
conversion of my property being a commercial business, particularly considering a whole lot of
properties have long-term rentals. And if we're calling the rental of a particular unit a
commercial business, well, then all of those are commercial businesses as well.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I, I just want to make a comment, you know. You don't have to
respond. And I still feel that a residential subdivision should be a residential subdivision without
any commercialized entity in that residential subdivision. It was approved as such and, and
we've made exceptions through ordinances. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. And thank you, Tom, for your testimony.
You answered a lot of the questions that I was going to ask in your testimony and in the
questions you've answered. But I want to focus in on one thing, and that's the last thing we're
talking about and which the Chair just commented on. What is your feeling about what should
be in this Commercial Residential rate? Who should be included in that rate, what kind of
things?
MR. CROLY: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Is it just the B&Bs or is it more?
MR. CROLY: The way that it's been structured, I didn't agree with from the beginning. But now that
it's been structured that way, the only people who should be in this category are bed and
breakfast operators who have been granted a Bed and Breakfast Permit because those are
homeowners. Anyone else that you put into that category who's not making that property their
home, okay, they start from a different basis because if it's not your home and you don't qualify
as a homeowner, you start from the Residential tax rate which is, as we all know, is higher. So
any property that's not being used as someone's primary home should not be in the
Commercialized Residential category. But a property that is being used as someone's home and
then is also granted an additional land use right, I suppose we can put in that category. There are
better ways to do that, but this isn't the time to discuss those, those different ways. I'd like to
have the opportunity to discuss those at another time in Budget Committee as to how that could
be better structured and more fairly structured. But the way that it's set up now, it doesn't make
sense to have Oprah Winfrey's, you know, big property up in, in Keokea with the ability to do
short-term rental and my bed and breakfast with one cottage in the same tax category.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: The, the thing that comes to my mind and is a sticky thing for me is
home business. You know, we're going to be talking about home businesses shortly after
Budget and that's a whole other situation because people live in those homes where they do
home business. So that criteria of living in the house remains. And so, to me, that's a whole
other can of worms. But for...I just wanted to get a clear answer from you about the
Commercial Residential.
MR. CROLY: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Baisa. And, and the Chair has, in his Committee, a bill
to remove short term rental from Commercialized Residential, and they go back to highest and
best use. So we'll take it up after Budget is completed. Thank you, Mr. Croly. Next testifier is
Warren Watanabe.
MR. WATANABE: Good morning, Chair Pontanilla, Members, Members of the Committee. And I do
understand this subject matter is...will be discussed tomorrow evening. But the Maui County
Farm Bureau, on behalf of our commercial farm and ranch families and organizations, opposes
the proposed increase in the real property tax rate for Agriculture. Commercial agriculture
operations range in size and type of operation. Ultimately, their continued existence depends on
their viability... ability to make a profit. Like other businesses, we have many expenses that are
beyond our control, but in many cases the impacts of these factors cannot be passed on to the
consumer. Over the past months there has been serious discussion about tax assessments. The
impact on ag of the proposed tax rate increase is difficult to assess as it is dependent on the
assessed value. An increase in assessed value multiplied by an increased property tax rate can
break an operation surviving on thin profit margins. In the case of our larger producers with
significant acreages, the total amount can be significant. Granted property tax will not be the
actual expenditure that causes the change in financial viability, but it will play a significant role
in sending a message about the County's commitment to expansion of agriculture. There are
several questions that should be answered as increases of ag property tax is considered. One,
clarification of ag dedication. A priority is the designation of important agricultural lands. How
will this classification be treated in comparison to the traditional dedication which has a sunset?
Two, cost of community services. True commercial ag properties do not require the levels of
community services per acre of property as do other land classifications. Road maintenance,
utility infrastructures and other public services are limited. Does it warrant the proposed
increase in tax as compared to other categories that require significant levels of service? It
should be clearly stated that ag lands do not require services such as roads with curbs and
sidewalks as justification for the lower rates. During the last PUC hearing that resulted in an
increase of interisland shipping cost, the argument put forth was that the increase was very small.
Yet in reality it was enough to form, force some of our farmers out of business. The Maui
County Farm Bureau is committed to protect our commercial agricultural operations to increase
Maui's capacity for self-sufficiency and growth. Ag products, whether by conventional export
or suitcase exports, bring tax dollars into the County to add to the General Fund. We need to
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protect and increase this capacity. For this reason, Maui County Farm Bureau is strongly
opposed to the proposed property tax increase. Thank you.
MR. KANESHINA: Three minutes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Member Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Thank you, Mr. Watanabe, for being here.
Question for you. You said the PUC had a small increase in shipping costs, but it was
a...enough to force some of our farmers out of business. How many farmers?
MR. WATANABE: I would say about three or four of them.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Any names we know or what, or what kind of things they were doing?
MR. WATANABE: They were doing vegetable products and they were...basically their main market
was Oahu. So the increased cost--well, what happened was the, they asked...they worked
through wholesalers and they asked the wholesaler well, you know, our freight is going to go up,
can I get an increase in my, in my return? Wholesalers told them, no. And so it, you know, that
increase in the transporting the product to Oahu was not worth...it couldn't cover, they couldn't
recover from it.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, this...that this is what frustrates I know me and some, some of
the other Members is we're trying to talk about commercial, agricultural sustainability here on
Maui, yet these folks are shipping their stuff off to Oahu while we are shipping in 90 percent of
our produce. There's a disconnect there. Why not just ship the...keep it in, on the island as
opposed to shipping it out?
MR. WATANABE: Well, in, in this case the, the commodity was head cabbage. There is enough head
cabbage for Maui County. The market is on Oahu. And, you know, if the farmer wants to
continue to grow that crop, that is the market he needs to send it to.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And that makes a lot of sense. And then the next question then would
be what about shifting crops or is it difficult if you know one thing--I'm just trying to wrap my
head around this--if you know one thing, that and all the, you know, problems that you have
raising that, is it better to...can you go to another crop or whatnot?
MR. WATANABE: Yeah. There...you could do that, but you gotta, you need to understand. The
farmers, you know, they grow a crop that they can grow at a profit. If it ain't, if growing
something--like, you know, I always give an example and, you know, we really respect working
with our chefs and, you know, our local restaurants, but to ask a farmer to grow a crop that does
not do well in Hawaii whereas modifying your menu to adapt to crops that do well here.
Because in, in the long term what you're doing is reducing the farmer's cost of production, and
that's what we keep going back to, cost of production.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Good point. And that's the reason why we import all these other
type of vegetables to Maui County. Any more question? Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: While we have the presence of the expert and he, he has a lot of history.
My understanding, Warren, and help me remember this, is that farmers have tried doing that,
correct?
MR. WATANABE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We've tried various crops.
MR. WATANABE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Can you tell us a little bit about that? And I know they've been, it's
kind of been a mess.
MR. WATANABE: Yeah. You know, Maui has a history of growing, of doing very well with our
vegetable crops. The head cabbage, for instance, my parents were growing it, I grew it. You get
new pests and, again, it gets back to invasive species and the inspector's programs. The
diamond... for the head cabbage we got several years ago in the '80s, '90s, we got hit by the
diamondback moth. This is an insect that is prolific for developing resistance to pesticides, and
it's not just in Hawaii, it's a worldwide problem with the diamondback moth. We also in those
days had the tomato spotted wilt virus come in. It wiped out our tomato growers, you know, and,
and we do have some now, but, you know, we worked with CTAHR...they, they...Dr. John Cho
worked for several years developing resistant, trying to develop a resistant variety. I believe he
partnered with Cornell University. That we had some success, but it didn't continue because the,
the spotted wilt also affects lettuce crops. Recently we did try to get some funding to research
done through HARC. Again, that's an ongoing project. We most recently...you're all familiar
with the iris yellows that came in to affect the Maui onions. So, you know, it's a constant battle
of, you know, trying to mitigate the, these impacts.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, one follow-up.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We're working on the Budget and I know you've been trying to, you
know, stay close with us. There's a proposed reduction in the Farm Bureau budget. Any
comment?
MR. WATANABE: We do support the Mayor's proposed allocation for Farm Bureau. We hope to, that
is what the Council will approve. A reduction will hurt our programs. As you know, we
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basically, we do our Maui County Ag Festival, we do our Ag in the Classroom Program, and our
Grown On Program. And cuts will be basically, have to be made in those programs, which again
gets back to keeping our farmers and farmers, farmers and ranchers viable.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So there's a proposed cut of $50,000 and that's okay?
MR. WATANABE: No.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Well, you know, we need to hear it.
MR. WATANABE: Yeah, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: What will that do to you? Can you tell us?
MR. WATANABE: Well again, yeah, I mean that will probably eliminate a lot of, a lot of things that
we do. You know, we are looking at other grant opportunities, we do that. But I think basically,
like I said, you know, we...for me personally, and, you know, I know this is on record, but
personally I would like to see the programs funded and, you know, I'm the only staff and if my
position goes, well, you know, we'll do it on a voluntary basis as an organization.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Thank you very much.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Yeah. Before I call on Mr. Victorino, just to let you know,
Warren, the Chair's recommendation was to, to go back to your Fiscal 2012 request, and part of
the reason is that when you look at the revenues for the County of Maui, you know, that tells me
that, you know, we're not receiving the type of revenues that we had received prior years. As we
collect less, our expenses go up. So there's a disparity. Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And thank you, Mr. Watanabe, for being here. My
question to you is of the many acres that are being grown today, what percentage is shipped out
and what percentage stays here on Maui? Do you have any idea?
MR. WATANABE: That, that's very hard because, you know, we had good information before, but
with the State budget, the, actually the Ag Statistics Division was, was one of the departments
that got hit.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. WATANABE: So they have a hard time compiling the data. In fact the Maui crop enumerator was
let go and just, has just recently come back on board.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And, and the other question I have for you is with this rate
increase coupled with other factors--and other factors, if I'm correct, fuel cost, fertilizer, a
number of other factors right here locally--I'm not even talking exporting it, I'm talking what
just has to be brought in and what you need. Do you believe that more farmers definitely would
go out of business -MR. WATANABE: I believe so.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --commercial farmers, commercial farmers?
MR. WATANABE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. You have any idea, any number...five, six, eight?
MR. WATANABE: I, I, I wouldn't venture to say.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. WATANABE: But I think, you know, it's a policy decision because again, you know, we're all
aware, agriculture is a low-profit margin business -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes.
MR. WATANABE: --and so, you know, if it gets to a point where the land can be used--because I think
your policy should be how do we keep our farmers and ranchers viable so that you can keep the
land in agriculture.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. WATANABE: And that's why I've discussed with several of you, I think, you know, overall we
need to look at a policy for the County and, and the State of Hawaii. When we go before the
Legislature with the session will be ending soon, you know, we had fairly good success this year,
this session for agriculture. But I think, you know, policy decisions, those kinds of things that
really impact agriculture, that's where I feel personally that governmental bodies can help -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. WATANABE: --to sustain agriculture.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And the last question I have for you is year to year the
yields that are produced, even though the same number of acres are planted, the same number of
cabbage, but you have what we call yields, and those yields change from year to year--is that
correct?
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MR. WATANABE: That's correct. A lot of it has to do with the, the environment -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MR. WATANABE: --and as you're well aware, the cattle industry is suffering tremendously because of
the drought.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. WATANABE: I know Ulupalakua Ranch has started shipping out their cattle already -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. WATANABE: --they, they've reduced their numbers.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. And, and also the world market and world demands also
change your position as far as pricing is concerned?
MR. WATANABE: It, it does to a point, but and again...because we say we cannot pass on the
increases to consumer--I mean we all recognize Hawaii has a high cost of living and...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. WATANABE: ...there's only so much people can pay for their food, and that's the recognition we
have to have. And that's why we stress commercial farm operations because you need to have
volume, but you also have to be aware of the cost, you know. You know, again, if people can't
afford to buy it, they're not going to purchase.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair, for that clarification.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Mr. Watanabe, this goes back to the, the
question Ms. Baisa asked and, and you heard the Chair talk about it as well. You know, it says
that the $50, $50,000 is for the flower show. Did you spend $50,000 on the flower show last
year?
MR. WATANABE: I believe, and you may confirm with Teena Rasmussen, but from the Farm Bureau
budget we allocated 25,000 -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. WATANABE: --for the Philadelphia Flower Show.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 2, 2012

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And, and there's no flower show this year, so at least the 25,000 is
different from...
MR. WATANABE: Well, preliminary discussion I got with, with Teena is that she is looking to take
some, she is hopeful that we will fund partly for the Coffee Bicentennial.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair Could you share with us the revenues that you
generated through the Ag Fest parking and all those other things? I don't know whether that's a
cost for you guys or...
MR. WATANABE: We are still going through the, collecting all the fees that we collected. Generally,
I think it's, it's a little over 10,000, I believe.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: And how would that compare to last year's?
MR. WATANABE: Better. We are...I appreciate the support of the community We had a lot more
sponsorships this year to help cover our expenses, and, and again we are looking at it...we are
going to take a different approach and look at it as our major fundraiser for Farm Bureau.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah. You guys do a great job on that and I, and I think the community
really appreciates it. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And, and, yeah, I'd like to echo Mr. White's congratulatory to
you folks in regards to the Ag Festival. I'd just like to give you some history. You know, when
the economy was really robust back in 2008, 2009, the Council had approved for your
organization $435,000. As, as the economy went down and, and, you know, we kind of reduced
the, the grant amount and, you know, we were faced with some deficit in revenues, like 7 percent
or $7 million--so that's the reason, part of the reason why the Chair is recommending a fat
budget for all of the organizations that are requesting a grant. And I don't know if you heard, but
we're also faced with some unfunded liabilities that, you know, we need to catch up on just to
protect the employees, the government employees that work for the County of Maui, both
retirees as well as active employees. So thank you, thank you, Mr. Watanabe, for being here.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I just have one more question. I certainly agree with you that we want
to protect the farmers and the ranchers, but in taking a quick calculation of the impact, you know,
as we've discussed in the TIG, of the 27,000 or 275,000 acres of property that's in the ag
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assessed part of our valuations, we generate only $207,000 or about $1 per acre. So what, what
this rate increase would do is it would increase that 207,000 by about 14,000 or 5 cents an acre.
So the, the vast majority of the impact of this, this increase is really aimed at the folks that have
built on ag land and aren't necessarily farming. And again we get back to that challenge of
having different uses in the same category. The concern I think the Chair and others share is that
with these increasing demands for covering our costs, you effectively have a lot of people riding
on your coattails because we all want to protect you, but we haven't yet created any kind of a
separation that allows us to do, to do that and be asking for an adequate amount of revenue from
the others in the same category. So, you know, Mr. Chair, we're just, we're just back to where
we started and we've got a lot of people that are on ag lands that are simply hiding behind the,
the farmers.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The farmers. I agree. Thank you. Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, not a question. But again, you know, I appreciate what
Mr. Watanabe does, and he did a great job at the Legislature. He got the State to retain
agricultural inspectors positions that helps this County, but there's also a cost to have those
inspectors. So it's not just what the County does, it's what also the State does and what the
Federal government may or may not do. But so I just wanted to thank him for his successes
there. But you gotta understand, yeah, Mr. Watanabe, one of the things the agricultural industry,
as I recall to my best of my recollection, including from a ranching component, was that they
asked us to be fair and equitable and to review all tax categories. Okay, and we are in the
process of doing that. This is just another step in a multi-step process of reviewing and making
appropriate adjustments. And so I can hope you can appreciate the, what the Chair has proposed
is that it is a part of this Committee's work, and again coming as part of the comment and request
from your sector, agricultural sector, for us to review all the categories, the rates, and to see what
is fair adjustments to meet the obligations of this County. So again this may not be the right
number at this time, but I think philosophically the Chair is moving in the appropriate direction
of showing us what it takes to pay for our government--to all of us, the resident, the government
officials, the various economic sectors of our County, and how we, in total, we approach to pay
off the obligations and requirements of this, this County's operations. So, I hope you can share
that message with your members also that, you know, this is a step of adjustments and yes,
they'll be paying, but as we were told a week and a half ago by not doing these adjustments now,
the pain becomes greater and then maybe unbearable down the road. So, I hope we can continue
the dialogue between all sectors because I think this is an important, major step for this
Committee at this time. Thank you, Mr. Watanabe.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for Mr. Watanabe? Seeing none,
thank you again.
MR. WATANABE: Well, can I make a response to Councilmember White's...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'll give you that opportunity.
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MR. WATANABE: Thank you. You know, we, we...and, and to Councilmember Hokama, you know,
we recognize that, you know, agriculture has to pay its fair share. However, the...regarding, you
know, it's...what the farmers and ranchers fear is the cumulous, cumulative effects because of
the increase in cost of production, and that's why I keep going, we keep going back to the cost of
production. For agriculture in Maui County and the State of Hawaii because we import all of our
inputs, that is where we need to address make a, you know, concerted effort to make, reverse
that trend. And again because if we don't, I don't see a bright future for agriculture in Hawaii.
And that's why I talk about policies and things like that, working with the State Legislature,
working with our Governor and our Federal government. The Federal Farm Bill, I mean they
were cutting it...like I mean it's a, it's a huge, tremendous cut on the Federal level, too. And so
we as a nation, I believe, not just only Maui County, need to decide how do we support and get
viable agriculture back as a legitimate business because we are only 2 percent of the population,
you know. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, thank you for that comment by the way. We heard in
the national level when we do attend our legislative conference in Washington D.C. Thank you.
MR. WATANABE: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The last testifier signed up, signed up for public testimony this morning is
Jeff Murray. And if there's anyone that would like to provide public testimony, if you could see
the Secretary in the lobby, sign up.
MR. MURRAY: Good morning, Budget Chair and Committee.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning.
MR. MURRAY: I am here on behalf...to speak on the Fire Department's behalf on our Premium Pay.
Please give us some reconsideration, not just the Fire Department, but public safety as a whole.
For an example, this year alone we are already short in moving forward and we haven't had
really any substantial fires as we normally do, but we got less than 60 days left and we are
approximately $500,000 short already. So please reconsider. It, it's a tough process for us to
come up and ask for emergency funding and what have you, and it just makes us easier to
balance the budget. Just realize that no overtime is done in our Department without prior
approval for something specific Emergencies, we allow the Battalion Chief to call back crews
and all of it is coordinated. When, when the time is done, they're off duty. We have been real
prudent about all of that in the last four years and we, we're trying to be a team player along with
all the other departments, and we really realize what's going on. We thank you for all the hard
work that you're doing. We know it's not easy, but realize that, you know, we are short and the
numbers prove it. But we, we're trying to be fiscally responsible. So thank you for this
opportunity to present that to you. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, Jeff, I just
want to make a comment in regards to shortfalls. If, if you do have a shortfall, you know, again I
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offer all of the departments in regards to a budget amendment to cover your cost. But if the
Administration could look elsewhere to cover the cost, you know, I would encourage that.
Thank you.
MR. MURRAY: All right, thank you. Yeah, we're working with the Budget Director.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Thank you.
MR. MURRAY: Thanks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, Mr. Murray -UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --was the last person signed up for public testimony...
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, Mr. Murray.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Question. We, we are going to have the, the Chief...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, yeah. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, great. I had to ask.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. This is all public testimony, by the way. Okay. Is there anyone in the
audience that would like to provide public testimony at this time, please come forward. Seeing
none...Members, no one is coming forward. Without any objections, the Chair would like to
close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chair is going to call for a ten minute recess and that once we come back, we
have personnel from the Parks Department as well as the Fire Department here this morning.
This meeting is in recess. We'll reconvene at 10:30. . . . (gavel).. .

RECESS:

10:23 a.m.

RECONVENE:

10:34 a.m.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Members, we do have Mr. Pat Matsui from the Parks Department. Members, we
had indicated that we would call some of the department heads or deputy... or Directors or
Deputy this morning. For Mr. Matsui, I, I know we had questions. Anybody got questions for
Mr. Matsui?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Mr. Matsui, in, in yesterday's discussion when we were
referencing the lighting at Duke Maliu Field, before you left yesterday you gave me a number of
80,000. Did you review that number?
MR. MATSUI: Yes, we have. A better number is 45 to 50 thousand for-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Mateo, what page was that?
MR. MATSUI: --the design.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: It's on 24. I'm sorry. I'm sorry, Mr. Matsui.
MR. MATSUI: Forty-five to fifty thousand for the design.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And do you know what kind timetable that design will take?
MR. MATSUI: I would say maybe three months.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Three months.
MR. MATSUI: You know, they'd have to go and do a soils test, and I think we already have a
topographical map of the area. So they wouldn't have to do that, but would just be putting it
together and then setting the bid date.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So what would the cost be?
MR. MATSUI: Forty-five to fifty thousand. Mr. Chair, yeah, the construction would be...well, the
South Maui Park cost us 400,000 for the ball field light. So if you add the Molokai factor,
maybe 500 plus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That would be 2014?
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MR. MATSUI: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. This is only monies for 2013. Let's see...I think the other question
was at Kepaniwai.
MR. MATSUI: Yeah. I sat down with Mr. Goode and...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Page 23, Members. Okay, Mr. Matsui.
MR. MATSUI: The Kepaniwai project is basically pathways and ADA accessibility. For the ADA
accessibility, because of the tolerances that we need to meet, we, we've gone with concrete and,
and not asphalt. For some areas where we...it's just a pathway, we, we could use asphalt, but the
problem is the width of the asphalt spreading machine that Public Works has and also the terrain,
getting in there. So they would not be able to help us on that area. If we go asphalt, we probably
would...a private contractor who has like 5-foot wide pavers that they could bring in. Again,
there may be areas of the site that they could not get their machinery in, it kind of depends. So in
the design process we'd be identifying areas that we could pave with asphalt versus concrete.
But in any case, you know, the Public Works machine is too big for our purposes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Can you live with the $300,000?
MR. MATSUI: Again like anything, you know, we can go as far as the money will take us.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I see.
MR. MATSUI: So, you know, we may not be able to do all of the work, but we can do, you know, a
pretty good percentage of it -CHAIR PONTANILLA: What, what we can do is -MR. MATSUI: --the top priority.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --that if you want to complete the work and the $300,000 is not enough, I
encourage you to come back to this Council for a budget amendment to complete the work.
MR. MATSUI: Okay. We could do that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. So I'll just leave the 300,000. Okay. Members, questions for
Mr. Matsui? Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. Page 31, the Lahaina Rec Center lighting. I
think Mr. Matsui has a better price for us this morning?
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MR. MATSUI: Yes, we're looking in Lahaina would be 35 to 40 thousand dollars..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Page 31?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: What?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, that's just for design, planning and design. Right,
Mr. Matsui?
MR. MATSUI: Yes, it's planning and design.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: This is for the Lahaina -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, Lahaina Rec Center -CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Rec Center?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --ball field lights.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Okay. Anything else?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I have a question for Mr. Matsui with all these design quotes and costs
and whatnot. How many engineers do you have in the planning and design portion of your
Department?
MR. MATSUI: Yeah, we have CIP Coordinators. A couple of them have...architectural backgrounds,
but not engineering backgrounds. For the lighting projects, the type of engineering services we
need is pretty specialized -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. MATSUI: --like one the soils testing that's, you know, a very specialty kind of thing, then a
structural to make sure the poles don't fall down, and then a lighting who, you know, would
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design, making sure you have the correct level of lighting and, and the, that the bulbs are aimed
correctly so there's no...you know, you have the even distribution of lighting. So -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. MATSUI: --they're all very specialized fields.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And the same with their, the design of gyms and what not, all
different?
MR. MATSUI: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'm just trying to figure out what the...you know, with, I think you
have quite a few positions there and just curious what they, what kind of projects they do,
because we keep going, 'cause we keep going and paying more money for design and design and
design and we got all these positions there. Just curious.
MR. MATSUI: The CIP Coordinators' duties are just that, they coordinate the project. They take it
from conceptual all the way through design, bidding, and the actual construction -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. MATSUI: --and...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And then lastly, we have two lighting projects and I thought one more,
but I can't remember now. Would it be prudent to put all those into one contract and just say
let's look at that? Would we save money that way?
MR. MATSUI: Not necessarily, but, you know, that's something we can look at.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. So, I've got a quick one. Mr. Matsui, the Wahikuli
improvements going on right now, are all those monkey pods going to be yanked out? I noticed
they're chopping 'em pretty badly and I think a few of 'em have been dug out completely.
MR. MATSUI: I think some of 'em are going to be moved.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Relocated?
MR. MATSUI: Relocated, right.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. In the same area or just somewhere else, else?
MR. MATSUI: Would be in the same area.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Put it back where they were kind of thing after -MR. MATSUI: Not, not -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --the trenching's done and stuff?
MR. MATSUI: --where they were, no. 'Cause it's in the way of -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, obviously there'll be pipes there, right.
MR. MATSUI: --`cause they're putting a sewer line and then pedestrian walkways or pathways. So -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And then...
MR. MATSUI: --if you put it too close to that you know the roots will intrude and break up the sewer
lines or the, the walkways.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, we'll have Kepaniwai problems.
MR. MATSUI: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: The Wahikuli improvements, that's part of that then or that's
strictly for the pavilions?
MR. MATSUI: The Wahikuli improvements is for the pavilions, no.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. There's another one, South Maui Community Park. You
had some design money in there, $375,000, and we had a discussion yesterday in regards to the
new gymnasium being a public-private partnership and also adding a youth service type facility
at that location. Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Mr. Matsui, I, I know I saw some designs, plans for a gym
already. So when you say you're going to do design money or redesigning on this facility, is that
the construction design or...? Because I, I seem to recall seeing some pretty detailed plans.
MR. MATSUI: Yes, the plans you saw were conceptual designs. You know, we had to kind of set the
master plan, so we needed an idea of the size and the placement of it so...and with the...so they
did some conceptual sketching and, you know, one line schematics showing the outline. So what
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we're asking for is the actual construction, construction plans and specs that we can go out to bid
on.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. And I know there's been talk of possibly doing some sort of
exhibition hall concept there. Kind of keep that in the back of your mind when we, when we do
the design of the area, quite possibly doing some sort of thing that the Mayor was thinking about
doing here at War Memorial down in that vicinity or even on that piece of land somewhere,
possibly, you know, Phase III area.
MR. MATSUI: Yeah. Part of it wasn't, it wasn't just the gym. It included like meeting rooms, like
some exhibition areas, I guess restrooms, large areas for I think looking at even Summer PALS,
but it's something we kind of need to revisit again.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, you, you know, I, I support Mr. Couch's idea to, you know,
expand. You know, since we're in...if we're going to redesign, then why aren't we looking at
the opportunities that we know we have currently available there, particularly since Kemper
USA is open to working with us to see if there's something that they might want to participate in
a funding of a well thought-out CIP for this region? I would rather us pay a little bit more in the
design concept than, than making those big change orders and adjusting in the construction point,
`cause that's where we're going to lose a lot more money. So, I'm willing to make the
appropriate adjustments in this component and see if they make, it makes sense for us to work
with a Kemper entity or another entity that may give us a better deal to see what we can do, since
also the potential is how to utilize and attract additional traffic flow for the High Tech Park. One
of the advantages of this region is again the policy regarding timeshares and the availability of
hotel rooms. And who knows, if we do it smart, why wouldn't this so-called exhibition area, you
know, possibly could have hotel rooms and we just manage it out to a professional management
entity that would pay us instead of us trying to do it ourselves and lose money on it. So, you
know, I think there's opportunities here, Chairman. There's a potential, for me, revenue
generator. It also brings additional capacity to the South Maui for the hotel region, component as
well has the High Tech Park component. So, I think it might be worthwhile for us to, you know,
support the, this project and allow it to maybe look at options down the road.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. One of the things that Chair was thinking about in proposing is a
proviso to kind of provide some information from this Council in regards to what we're looking
at, you know, private-public partnership, also that youth facility, that exhibition area, you know,
all of those things that we think that gonna be helping Maui in, in the sports activities field as
well as, you know, generating revenues through...in your idea as far as like timeshares or hotel
rooms in the same general location. So we'll proviso that so that at, at least give some
guidance --
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm not proposing -CHAIR PONTANILLA: --to the Parks -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --I'm not proponent...you know, don't think I'm proposing to advocate for
the timeshare. I'm saying we got the hotel rooms, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, no, I understand.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I don't want people to think I. . . (inaudible).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Let's put it this way, we like...we, we want to have more park assessments.
Okay, let's see. Anything else for Mr. Matsui? So we, we took care of Duke Maliu, Kepaniwai,
and South Maui, and Lahaina Civic Center.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, Lahaina Rec Center, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: What's that?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Lahaina Recreational Center.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, Lahaina Rec Center. Yeah, I'm sorry. Okay. That's it? Questions? No
more? Thank you, Mr. Matsui. Okay. We do have people from the Fire Department. And, and,
Members, Chair is gonna go up to 11:30, then we'll break for lunch. Okay? Thank you,
Chief Murray, for being here.
MR. MURRAY: Good morning. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any questions for Mr. Murray at this time?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chief. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. And thank you, Chief Murray, for being here this
morning. We were in discussion in regards to the three Fire Fighter III positions for Lahaina,
specifically for tanker truck drivers, and there's, I guess, some questions if we could not, not
have to, I guess, add it in to the Budget, if there could be movement within, redescribing
positions of that nature. So, I just wanted your take on these positions, the need for them and
how we can accomplish that. I have the appropriate monies for salaries and, and the PPEs and
whatever comes with, you know, a newly funded position. So, I just need your explanation on
the, on the need for these positions in Lahaina.
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MR. MURRAY: All right. Thank you for that question. Yes, we do need those positions because at
this point what we're doing is taking a fire fighter from that engine company and TA'ing that
person up to drive that tanker based on that incident. So in turn, it puts that engine company at a
lower personnel capacity which, you know, is a safety concern, and also you're having
individuals that are rotating on a vehicle, you know, that's worth just under $600,000. So if you
had a assigned person to specifically drive that tanker, like we do in Kahului and Wailea and
Hana, it, it would just make it more efficient and, and, you know, ultimately safe.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Thank you, Chief.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Chief Murray, so the TA'd personnel that goes to fire fighter,
temporary Fire Fighter III to handle the truck comes from the Lahaina station?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. MURRAY: Per our union contract, the individuals who do temporary assignments need to be from
the company within that station first.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, good. In your Department, how many vacancies that are still unfilled that
need to be filled that is budgeted? Would you know?
MR. MURRAY: We, we are checking right now. I believe it's three.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Those are Fire Fighter II level or...?
MR. MURRAY: No, those are Fire Fighter I, the entry level and, so basically right now we have
12 recruits that have started yesterday to fill those vacancies, and then based on what has
happened in the last two months, we, we have three more openings now.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So you have a total of six?
MR. MURRAY: No, I believe it's three.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Just the three?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. So the 12 recruits, 3 of 'em will fulfill the three vacancies?
MR. MURRAY: No, of the 12 recruits, the 12 of 'ern will fill the 12 vacancies.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
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MR. MURRAY: So we have 15. And we have two vacancies that we, we are not filling that is on a
limited term status, and once that is lifted, then we will fill those positions as well.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. I was looking at the possibility of create, not creating,
but...redescribing the three Fire Fighter I's that you have vacancies to the Fire Fighter III type
position.
MR. MURRAY: Chair, thank you for that opportunity. The drawback to that would be, is which
positions do we take, is it just based on the openings? And, you know, it's really hard for us to
fill those openings and if, for instance, we had two of those Fire Fighter I positions that are not
filled on Molokai, we've already set them short from day one.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, so part of the vacancies right now could, one is on Molokai, or would you
know?
MR. MURRAY: I believe we have, right now as we speak, I believe we have two.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: On Molokai?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. MURRAY: So we're trying to rotate people in to, to fill that so we're not relocating people from
Maui 'cause that costs us a lot of money just to relocate them for that shift.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Members, any questions?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Back to the Lahaina Station, please. What's your current manning levels for
the shifts, please, Chief?
MR. MURRAY: I don't--hold on, you know what, I do have a detailed area of what we have open.
Okay. Lahaina specific -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. MURRAY: --we have two openings for a total station, one on the engine and one on the ladder.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And, and, but what is your current per shift manning level at this
time, please, Chief?
MR. MURRAY: Okay. For Lahaina, we have 15 for three shifts on the ladder, 15 for three shifts on the
engine.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And, and zero on the tanker?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, zero on the tanker.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So that is, what, five man crews then, Chief?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, sir.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: We're looking at five man crews, provided no one is calling out sick -MR. MURRAY: Or on vacation, yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --or vacation. So you got three pieces of equipment, five men and I know
you...I don't know whether it's an OSHA thing or, or your, the standard operation, but -MR. MURRAY: Yes, NFPA. We try to follow NFPA. So the minimum would be four.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So what is the minimum for three pieces of driving equipment--the ladder,
the tanker, and the engine?
MR. MURRAY: If we have someone out during the day, what is the minimum?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
MR. MURRAY: Right now would be, the way we have it now is eight. But actually what we would
need at a minimum would be nine.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Okay. So one of your Fire Fighter II's is then TA'd to the Fire
Fighter III for the tanker?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, a Fire Fighter I. Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: . . . (inaudible). . . Oh, you're during one Fire Fighter Ito one III?
MR. MURRAY: Right, yeah, 'cause the Fire Fighter II's are specific to our HAZMAT company and
our rescue company. So a Fire Fighter I steps up to Fire Fighter III and fills that position and if,
for instance, that day they are on four man --
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. MURRAY: --then they go down to three. So how we handle an event with a five man crew or a
five personnel crew, you'll have the driver that stays with the truck who pumps the water if
we're going to a fire scene, then you'll have one fire fighter at the hydrant, and the captain as
command until a commander, a battalion chief, or another company comes in and takes over
command. So we wouldn't be, we would be able to deploy two lines with that, with that
personnel. As we go to four personnel, we're only able to deploy one line. So we start falling
behind of the NFPA Codes on how to reasonably take care of, safely take care of a house fire or
whatever we're responding to, you know, as an example.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: The ladder goes automatically to all callouts regardless, Chief?
MR. MURRAY: No, they are specific based on the daily needs, yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So if it's a brush fire, you, you normally don't send the ladder, right?
MR. MURRAY: We normally don't, but because of the, the issues that we do have out there, what
we'll do is we'll leave the ladder truck with one person, they'll drive the whole crew to the
scene, and the extra three or four people will get with the engine and a utility and try to help
them, because you, most of our fires in the Lahaina area are fast moving, so we try to attack it as
best as possible. And if it's on the roadway, then the ladder helps as well.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, understood. So at this point in time, how long have you been
utilizing overtime to take care of this manning situation, over one year?
MR. MURRAY: Over two years now.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Over two years?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So...
MR. MURRAY: Actually going on three.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, that's a lot of, long time for us to do overtime. So again, you know,
for us it's, you know, the tradeoff of the overtime and retirement benefits versus new position
and, and reducing the overtime, but yet we still have then, you know, the long-term load of the,
the new positions. So that's part of our dilemma that we, we're going to need to deal with.
MR. MURRAY: Right. I appreciate that. Thank you.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So again for Lahaina, though, three years, one additional Fire Fighter III on
overtime, for three shifts?
MR. MURRAY: Yes. And, and, you know, what, how we've tried to adjust the funding is that we only
allow TA for certain amounts--checking the truck, making sure it's ready to go and on alarms.
But because of their, their high call volume, that truck runs quite a bit. So that, that was one of
the reasoning for that, you know, coming forward.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh. Okay. I, I'm sure other Members may have questions, but I
appreciate your responses, Chief. Thank you.
MR. MURRAY: You're welcome. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more questions? Mr. White, followed by Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. What's the cost of the overtime for one year to
handle, to cover that tanker?
MR. MURRAY: It varies based on the calls because if it's not a brush fire of that sort because this, this
tanker, you know, was built to go off-road -COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Just rough.
MR. MURRAY: I, I cannot answer that even in a rough fashion because it, it varies from shift to shift
and it varies from year to year Like in 2010 that, that thing was running at 80 percent. So I,
I...I don't know what it's gonna be.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Well, it's, it's an important figure -MR. MURRAY: I realize that.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --but if you can, if you can pull that up, I would appreciate it. The, the
reason I ask is that, you know, when I look at the number of vacancies you have, you're
essentially running the Department with people in various stages of, of training to fill positions
or you have vacant positions. And so the Department is covering all of its, all of its needs with
the current levels, and I think that, you know, the Chair's made the comment that it would
certainly be better if we could redescribe positions to cover this. And it sounds like you're able
to cover it because you've, you've got the staffing. Can you tell us what the problem is with just
redescribing as opposed to funding three new positions?
MR. MURRAY: Redescription goes through a, a long process, you know, also with the union having to
approve how that change is for that specific thing. But now if we take away a Fire Fighter I,
we're going to have to take it from a vacant spot. So, I would either have to move someone from
Lahaina to make that vacant spot there if, if that's the reallocation route that you wanted to use,
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and we still would be short because the minimum manning for a company is four. So on the
days that we have five, you know it, it is helpful. You know, how we try to do it in Kahului that
already has a tanker, we put the extra person on that tanker on that run based on the, the need that
they have. See, you know, it's a safety issue all the way around. First of all, we don't allow
those trucks to be backed up by themselves. They have to have a spotter. But if the tanker driver
responds to a call, they're, they're alone and we get damage, we have all of these other safety
issues that come about that. You know, it has proven its worth by having a dedicated driver, you
know, as well as with the maintenance, the preventive maintenance that goes on, all of those
things.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: But I'm, I'm not...I'm not questioning the need for a dedicated driver.
But the question really is redescribing the position as opposed to creating three new positions.
And the reason for that and the reason I wanted to know what the cost for the OT was is that if
you take the, salaries that the average for a Fire Fighter III, it looks to me like it's about 70,
about $70,000 a year. Is that correct?
MR. MURRAY: Seventy thousand dollars? Could you repeat that, please?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: The Fire Fighter III...if we added up the Fire Fighter Ills and it, with
the average it comes to about 70,600 per year.
MR. MURRAY: Yeah. That's a, that's a good estimate, you know, because they do range based on the
individual's salary, years of service, and what the collective bargaining agreement steps are.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah. It looks like it ranges from about ... (inaudible)... -MR. MURRAY: So what we have -COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --up to 75.
MR. MURRAY: --on average, we have spent over $307,000 in overtime for the Lahaina Station alone,
not specifically to that tanker, but as a whole-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: For one-MR. MURRAY: --for the station. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. So we've spent 300,000 in total OT.
MR. MURRAY: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: What would you assign the...could you...even if we put the number at
half ..
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MR. MURRAY: That would be at, yeah, a little over 150.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah. The cost to, the cost to provide three people at 70,600 per year,
adding then the, the benefit load at 88.6 percent, comes to just under $400,000 a year. I'll take
the 150 any day and it may, it may only be 100,000 or 75,000 that's assigned just to that tanker.
And if we were to redescribe the positions, we're talking about a much, much smaller number.
The reason I'm concerned about these numbers and adding employees is that we have a, we've
made a promise to you and to all the others in your Department and all the others throughout the
County to fund--whether, you know, we've been talking about a lot over the last week or so--our
unfunded liabilities, and they're huge. And, you know, you know that and I know you're aware
of that.
MR. MURRAY: Yeah, I realize that.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: But, for me, what it says is anytime we add a position, we have to be
really, really sure that there's no other way to do this. And my concern is that if you take those,
if you take the salaries and the benefit load and you, and you take a number and increase it
by...because you're, you know, you're going to be expecting to get increases, health care's
going to go up, our unfunded liability costs are gonna still continue to rise for a number of
reasons. And so if you take that first year cost out ten years with the, you know, with the regular
amount of overtime, we're looking at, at those three positions costing us $6 million in the first
ten years. If you take that out to 20 years, what we're committing to--because these positions
don't go away easily and once we promise employment to somebody we generally will keep
them--but the, the 20-year cost is in the neighborhood of $16 million. So that's why when we sit
here talking about 195,000 or 152, whichever number is correct, we have to start looking at what
the real cost is, because whatever we spend on these three positions takes away from our ability
to support your other needs for equipment and, you know, and electricity and, and a bunch of
other things. So I, I just wanted to share that, Chair, because I'm, I'm concerned that we, we
really should be looking at redescribing as opposed to just adding more positions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. This is really a very good discussion
about the numbers, because my initial reaction to paying overtime, of course, is the concern we
have over spiking.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You know, you take the salary over a person that normally earns 70,000
and he earns 80, 90, 100 thousand, and that's what his retirement is going to be based on, and
that's for, you know, fire fighters retire fairly early and are going to be around with us for many,
many years after they retire. So that's a calculation that I don't have, and it might be something
worth looking at as we try to make this comparison. But I do think that, you know, what
Member White is saying is really important, that we have to start taking a better look at the long- 43 -
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term cost of hiring employees. It isn't just that salary for that year. It's what are we committing
to for the rest of the life of this person if they stay with us. So, you know, we're really now
getting into the meat of, of hiring and what it really costs us.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And I, too, can agree to a point with my colleagues.
Although I think, Chief Murray, you'll agree, when the call is made for help, you want the help
to be there.
MR. MURRAY: Right, absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No money, no money is thought about at that point. How much is
a life worth? Okay, whether it's a million dollars for helicopters and all that. I can tell you the
general public--you and I both know, and everyone in this room--when the call for help is made,
best be there, because a life is on the line, no one thinks of money. All the equations mean little
or nothing when you're talking a life, whether it's yours, mine, anybody's life. So, I think that's
very important to keep in the equation. We're not talking about non-essential emergency
services. We're talking something dear to all our hearts. And it's all good when you have 16
million, 20 million, all these numbers being bandered [sic] about. But these people put their
lives on the line for us to protect our families, our friends, and our visitors throughout this
County; and they are very much underpaid and the benefits we put forward to these people. Hey,
I know of, I know what the, the...you know, we've heard the numbers, we've heard the numbers.
So, I'm not going to knock that. But we, we're...I don't like to talk apples and peaches when
you're talking fires and, what I should say, public safety. You know, that's paramount. I mean
my question to you, Chief, if we didn't say three fire fighter positions for Lahaina tanker and we
said one, would that be sufficient for you to operate or two? 'Cause sometimes, you know,
maybe, maybe it's time to look back at how can we stretch a little more doing, you know, doing
what we need done. And I think that's as important, you know. And I know a lot of times we
get caught up with numbers, but when the lives are on the line and we need to protect the public,
visitors or otherwise, no one called, no one thinks about the dollars at that point.
MR. MURRAY: Yeah, that, that's true. I mean we have been trying to think of the dollars, you know,
in looking at some of the proposals and how it challenges us and changes our strategies on how
we battle these situations. And, you know, it limits, limits our flexibility on how we actually,
you know, tactically get the job done. And, and that's a good question, but, you know, in what
we do, there's not, it, it...we try to run it like a business, but we cannot say "no", whereas a
business can say no. We don't have that opportunity to do that. And like you said, we, we are
going to respond, we are going to be there as best as we can. And, you know, I've never seen a
specific position that holds three people down to two people. I, I don't know how that would
work.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
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MR. MURRAY: I mean not to say that it can't be done, and one shift would TA where the other shifts
don't. I really don't know how that would work. I, I think that would be a DPS issue as well as
a union issue.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh. Well, I think the other question comes out, whenever
you put a lot of overtime or stress the manpower, their ability and their efficiency and their
alertness also subsides somewhat.
MR. MURRAY: Absolutely, it, it's a safety issue.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. And so, you know, again, Chair, this is where we gotta
depend on the departments, we gotta depend on the people; unfortunately, this is where the real
challenge comes up. When people makes foolish decisions and get swept out to sea or get lost in
the mountains, we pay big bucks rescuing them because they make foolish decisions. Maybe we
should charge them, but I don't think we'd ever get the money to get reimbursed for it. So, I
know that may be a pie in the sky dream. But I want, you know...I, I heard the numbers and I
agree with my colleagues, we gotta really pay attention to the numbers. But when it comes to
public safety and the well-being, I don't want to have ever someone say to me well, because you
cut back, my son, my daughter, my granddaughter died because of your cutback. I'd never want
to be here. I'd be long gone before I ever have to hear that one, Mr. Chair. So, I'm not to say
anybody thinks other than I...any differently than I do. We want to make sure we put what is
needed there. So long as the departments can show us they're doing their best, we need to do our
best. And this is the only time I'd have to agree with Mr. Hokama, hey, public, you're going to
have to pay, you're going to have to pay. You want it, you gotta pay for it. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Victorino. Before I call on Ms., Member Baisa, I, I'd just like
to point out that, you know, as Council persons that, you know, we review the fiscal year budget
every year. One of the things that we now know about this unfunded liability and how do we try
to bring that numbers down, and, and, you know, this year's Budget we're faced with all kind
stuff. And I agree with you, Mr. Victorino, that we shouldn't shorthand a department, especially
Public Safety and Police, because they do protect the people of this County. But we, we still
need to ask those questions, we still need to ask those questions. You know, with the spiking,
you know, I can, I can imagine three, from now until 2016, we may see a whole bunch of people
leaving the County of Maui. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah. Thank you very much, Chair. Chair, this reminds me of a
discussion I had many years ago with my husband's employer because they had him working
these horrible overtime, you know, he'd worked double shifts, and I was very concerned for his
safety. Because, you know, when you're working long shifts, long hours and you don't rest and
you don't have a...you know, you're, you're not your best and you're much more likely to get
into accidents or get hurt on the job, which really is not good for us or the employer or anybody.
And the response I got from his boss was well, he's on overtime. And I said, well, don't come to
his funeral and tell me that, it's not going to be a comfort that he was on overtime. My question
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to you, Chief, is do we have policies in regards to overtime and how long we allow people to
work?
MR. MURRAY: Our Department has policies for, for safety reasons and, and that's why we have those
policies. And we...years ago we instituted a rehabilitation process for our fire fighters that are
on scene, whereas the days when I was out there, we didn't have those things. We'd work
straight through. That's just the nature of the business. But now we look at the health and safety
and well-being of all of our personnel that are there. We monitor it and we account for
everybody that's there. So...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And with those limits--we're talking about, you know, using overtime-are we in any kind of danger for abusing and doing too much OT?
MR. MURRAY: Actually, no because it's based on the, on the situation that you have, and realize that
our stance and our strategy on how to battle these large blazes, for example, is that we try to get
as much resources there immediately so we can do it in a day, maybe two, maybe three as
opposed to two weeks. 'Cause the two weeks, it, it's, that's if...we average some of our fires
anywhere from seven to nine days that we are actually there, and we dwindle the manpower back
till the least amount that we can have on scene and also take care of coverage that we are having
normally on a day-to-day basis 'cause we have to cover that as well. It runs anywhere from 350
to 500 thousand for that incident alone. It's all based on the, the tools that you use. So like I
said earlier when I testified, no overtime is done without prior approval. It has to be specific to
what we're trying to accomplish and, and we keep, you know, good records of, of that. So...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So we're having this discussion about OT versus new people, what I'm
hearing is that OT is doable even though having better, more people would be better? That's the
decision we're going to have to make
MR. MURRAY: Well, the bottom line is what, whatever situation we got, we're going to do it, you
know.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'm sure you will, Chief. You guys do a great job. But, you know,
that's what we're faced with.
MR. MURRAY: And, and I realize that and we appreciate, you know, the questions and, and our ability
and, and the opportunities to stay here and actually talk about it. We appreciate that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, thank you very much. We appreciate what you do. Thank you.
MR. MURRAY: You're welcome.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Chief Murray, do we, does the Fire Department comply with
OSHA requirements in regards to how long they can work and, and, you know, continuous
hours?
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MR. MURRAY: Yes. And we also, we also have a policy not just on OSHA but also on overtime. We
try to stay away from double time based on a situation. We find all the ways that we can to be
fiscally responsible for those positions regardless of rank. You know, we really try to know
when a person needs to leave based, you know, for both of those reasons, and ultimately it's
safety because they need to get their rest. And the reason why they go into these overtime
situations of double or what have you, that's when we get into a...you know, I mean they're not
productive and we're paying them twice the amount. And, and number one, it's a safety issue.
So we try to avoid those safety issues by all means because that's what costs the County money.
If we get them hurt and now they're out on industrial, you know, they got an injury, that's the
worst case scenario, you know, death. So thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. You got anybody on industrial leave right now?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, we do. We, we have several people out on industrial leaves at different lengths
of time. We are working to get those individuals back. We do have a special assignment
program where we bring them back to get their hours back to normal and try to help them
rehabilitate themselves, which was taken very well during our inspection of our line of
duty death that we had in January, and it's frowned upon when departments don't have those
capabilities or policies in place to help employees get back to work. So, yes we do. Our, our
Department has that policy.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good. Members, any more questions? Member Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I guess more so a comment and, you know, we touched upon all the
reasons why I brought up this issue in getting, you know, creating these positions for Lahaina in
particular. As Chief said, it's been, I guess, an ongoing issue for coming up three years. I was
brought aware since I only got into this job a year ago, and so, you know, and it directly relates
to the safety, compliancy, efficiency of the service we're trying to give to our community, you
know, avoiding union issues, personnel, the spiking possible abuse that let, you know, down the
road long term takes that much more money out of us, the County government, you know. I
mean it's on and on and, and another key factor being in Lahaina, hey, we're coming up on the
dry season right now, you know, and I think it's a, a real high, high, you know, case that perhaps
we could more so than ever this time of year for fires in West Maui. And, you know, and I mean
it trickles down to the morale of the crew, the alertness of them on the job which in turn can, you
know, as we already spoke about injuries that can cause death and what have you. So these are
the kind of issues, you know, that I'm trying to address now and in the long term, long run I
believe it is the best choice for this County and for this Department, you know, to avoid a lot of
things we've been, we've been speaking about. So, I just wanted to close with those comments
and, and give the reasoning and justification for why I'm looking to hopefully get support from
my fellow Members in getting these three Fire Fighter Ills for West Maui. So thank you, Chair,
for inserting it here and the discussion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. White.
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair Chief, to what degree has the Department risked
public safety during the last year?
MR. MURRAY: Could you rephrase that for me, please?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: What level of risk have you guys put the public to this past year?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Corporation Counsel?
MR. UEOKA: Excuse me, Chair. I, I'd recommend we probably...could we take a recess?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No, I'll, I'll retract the question. The...well, my, my point is I don't
think you've put anyone at risk this year, at all, with your current level of staffing because
you've covered the needs with the overtime and you've stated that the overtime is significantly
lower than the cost of adding new people. And, you know, having a facility in West Maui, I
have a lot of interaction or my staff and I have a lot of interaction with your guys. They're
highly professional, they're highly proficient, they do an extremely fabulous job. But I, you
know, unlike some others, I feel that we can continue to cover that with, with overtime and, quite
frankly, the guys that, that are working I think enjoy, you know, having that extra, extra money.
And if I look at your, your current level of overtime, it shows that the, the amount of hours that
worked on average probably about 10 percent over what a normal work week was, and I would
guess that that probably all falls largely when we have large fires. So I guess the, the question
really is, you know, we...I don't want to put anyone in harm's way any more than Mr. Victorino
does, but I don't think we are. I think we have responsibility to make financial decisions that
make sense for the County without putting anyone at risk. And I think you guys do a great job
and I think you've done a great job over the last couple of years when this has been, been on the
table. And if we don't approve these, you're, you're going to continue to do a great job because
you guys are very well trained, you're outfitted well, and you've got a great, committed staff.
Wouldn't you agree?
MR. MURRAY: I...we do. Thank you very much for saying that, and we appreciate that. You know,
with that said, would that open the door for reinstating the Premium Pay, I mean based on the
policies that we have? I mean...I mean we gotta cover it some way or another and, and not to
put people in risk, you know, and we have those rules in place because of safety.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah.
MR. MURRAY: And like I'm saying, you know, we're willing to do anything -COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Uh-huh.
MR. MURRAY: --but we have to give them the, the tools and the ability to do that.
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And, and again, you know, Chair would like to reiterate his
comments in regards to shortfalls, you know. The Chair is willing to entertain any budget
amendment to ensure that, you know, you cover your costs. So we can do that.
MR. BAZ: I was just going to say thank you, Mr. Chair, 'cause they are projecting a shortfall for this
current Fiscal Year, and it's $1 million less appropriation than we had the previous fiscal year,
which they had only a .7 percent Carryover/Savings.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Members, the Chair is going to recess this meeting. When
we come back, we'll have Mr. Scott Teruya, Mr. Bill Medeiros, as well as -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Mr. Verkerke over here to talk about the proposed purchase of equipment for
Real Property Tax area.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And, and thank you for allowing us this time, it was good
discussion. Thank you, Chief Murray. And again as, as I said, I wasn't making any reflection
on, on people. I just talking about dollars versus safety.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And that's what of my intent. But I'd like to remind everyone that
lunch is provided in the back, we have soup and sandwiches available for all the Members for
lunch break.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, what time will we reconvene, please?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'm sorry, 1:30.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: One thirty.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Real quick. Thank you, closing comments. And I'm also looking
into the future of the growth of West Maui--Kapalua Mauka, Pulelehua, Kaanapali 2020, on and
on they go. We're going to need the services of this Department. I believe they're just, you
know, holding their head above water basically, and when everything builds out, we're going to
need more services and more manpower, women...fire fighter power to take care of any issues
that may arise. So, I just want to say that in my closing comments. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And I think through Member Baisa's Committee, you know as we
review the Maui, Maui Island Plan, you know, things like fire protection, police protection and
the like will be discussed at that time. So we'll recess this meeting until 1:30 this afternoon.
This meeting is in recess. . . . (gavel).. .
RECESS:

11:27 a.m.

RECONVENE:

1:30 p.m.

VICE CHAIR HOKAMA: . . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee shall come back to order.
Members, Chairman is going to be slightly delayed. So we will continue upon his direction. We
finished Finance [sic]. Is there any other questions you want to forward to the Chair at this time
that we can prepare Fire Department should there be additional requests? Okay, we can forward
it to Staff if you have additional questions regarding Fire Department. Okay. At this time, we
will move forward with the component under Department of Finance, which is our Real Property
Tax Division. This on Page 5, Members, at the bottom half regarding RPT computer equipment.
We do have Mr. Ching from Department of Management, we do have Mr. Teruya from Real
Property Tax joining Mr. Baz, our Budget Director. So, gentlemen, who's going to start first,
Mr. Ching, Mr. Teruya, or Mr. Baz? Mr. Ching.
MR. CHING: Mr. Chair, I'll give it a go. Good afternoon, Chair and Committee. Thank you for this
opportunity to speak to you with respect to our plans for our replacement of the Real Property
Tax assessment and appraisal system. I just wanted to come up and make you aware that the
Administration does have some comprehensive plans to replace our aging mass appraisal and
assessment system. The plans do include, however, a pre-project assessment of all of the
County's land information--actually it includes all of the County's IT section, so all of our
capabilities, our networks, our procedures, and what we're doing technology-wise to support our
operations. And why we're taking this holistic approach is because we do realize that parts of
our system require immediate attention, especially with respect to assessment and appraisal.
However, that is just one small piece of the whole, and, and we want to make sure that the
replacement piece that we get fits in with the rest of the County's needs. So this system needs
not only to fit in with our geographic information, our pictometry, but it also needs to fit in with
the rest of our land information, our permitting, our inspections, our, our zoning. So all of these
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varied technological pieces of software and hardware have to be able to talk together. They need
to be on common languages and common indexes so that the correct pieces of information get
transmitted electronically between software platforms and hardware platforms so that we all get
the one true picture of what the, the data should be. So if I have a particular parcel like my, my
home that has a street address, building permits, and zoning information, it all needs to be
consistent so that we're providing the most accurate data that we can out there and that, and so
that we're not only correctly assessing those that we should, but we should make sure that we're
not penalizing anybody for incorrect assessments that we're doing out there. And that's
primarily why we've come in and we asked not only for money to replace the Real Property Tax
system--I believe we're asking for approximately $980,000 to do that--we're also asking for an
additional $300,000 as a separate item to conduct the Countywide IT assessment. And we want
to make sure once we do this, that we do it the right way, we do it once and we don't have to
come back and revisit it, because it is going to be technical, it's going to be complex, it's going
to take a lot of time. And because it's our critical systems for collecting, especially for the bulk
of our revenue, we want to make sure we do it right. We don't want to cause any undue pain to
our citizens, our taxpayers and to our, our own systems and employees. We don't want to be
overloaded with appeals or lawsuits or what have you because we have mismanaged information.
So that's my message this afternoon. I'll be happy to answer any questions, and thank you again
for this opportunity.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, thank, thank you, Mr. Ching. And I think the Committee is
understanding of your, your comments. However, the Committee is also aware by not moving
forward we may be still maintaining inequities that currently exist with the Real Property
Program. So we'll take that into consideration as, as we move forward. So did, if the Committee
heard correctly, Mr. Ching, you're...you, you made comment about the 980 plus an additional
300,000. Is that correct?
MR. CHING: Correct, Chair.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And that 300,000 is currently within the MIS request?
MR. BAZ: Mr., Mr. Chair, if I might?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz.
MR. BAZ: Thank you. There, the MIS, Management Department in the MIS Division had requested
$300,000 on...it has been removed from the Chair's proposal at...Page 13. There was a line
item that's still under review, it says reduce professional services, $300,000.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. BAZ: That's what that study was for, the integrated system. And, Mr. Chair, just also to clarify
that the, the Administration hadn't requested the 980 in this Fiscal Year proposed Budget 'cause
we wanted to do the study first.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Understood, understood. Thank you very much for that. So, Mr. Ching,
why would it take $300,000 to do this assessment?
MR. CHING: Chair, we're estimating that that amount would include a pretty comprehensive study that
would include all of our IT systems, including not only our, our software and hardware
platforms, but our network, our network security, and also help us provide some direction for
moving forward and making sure that the systems that we do choose and the systems that we
plan to upgrade and replace, that they're all, all compatible and that they're done in a logical
order that will help us minimize the disruption to any services or to any of our operations while
we're doing it. We want to make sure that they're all consistent, that they can communicate, and
that everything we do ends up or results in a very cohesive information system that provides our
operations as well as our, our community the information they, they desire when they... as fast as
they can get it.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I would prefer you folks go out for an RFP and come back to the Committee
for a more, more detailed budget request. Now we have our in-house guru, Mr. Couch, that
understands your language very, very well. And I can tell you from our membership in NACo, I
can tell you I'm sure we can do it below this $300,000. 'Cause if we're not doing some of the
things you mentioned that we should review and be doing, then we're in worse shape than this
Committee realizes.
MR. CHING: Chair, if I may?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ching.
MR. CHING: Thank you, Chair. We, the Administration does truly plan to use this assessment as, as a
future planning tool and, and, seriously follow the guidelines that we, we obtain from it. And we
want to use it as a springboard for, for moving forward and making sure that we're going in the
right direction at the right time and the right way. So we really, we, we've begun initial planning
to go out for RFP specifications. We are hoping that this Committee will approve our budget
request for, for this project, and we're really going to use it as a linchpin for moving forward. So
that's why we're putting so much importance on it. And we do intend to do it very quickly, we'd
like to be able to formally issue our RFP in, in July or, or August of this year, and we'd like to
have the assessment completed by the, the end of this calendar year if, if at all possible so that
we can take action within this Budget, Chair.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. CHING: So thank you, Chair.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That's a good timeframe, Mr. Ching. That makes a lot of sense.
Mr. Teruya, your comments on your, your section regarding the $980,000, please?
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MR. TERUYA: Good afternoon, Chair and Members. I would echo David Ching's remarks. The
portion that I'm going to speak to is more the assessment system itself. We've been looking for
a new system probably for about four years now, and over the last four years we've gotten some
quotes from various vendors that we go to the annual conference, and it is around the $900,000
range. Even with our existing system if we were to upgrade, it's not a free upgrade, it's, it's a
cost that you need to pay. In 2007, the City and County of Honolulu did the upgrade at about
three-quarter million dollars. So since that time, the costs have gone up. This system we
acquired in, I believe, 1999, and the City in 2007, as I mentioned, did the upgrade, and we are at
that point where a lot of the systems or the capabilities that is, was available is no longer
supported. So that's the reason for the request from, from the Division's end. The computer
replacement...from what I understand, it's, it's upgrading the entire computer system for the 37
employees, and that's the 55,000. The ArcEditor Software is 25,000. That's basically for the
three licenses, for the GIS Analyst, and some tax map staff to use the software to edit the base
layer maps. And I just was mentioning about pictometry. This is not including pictometry. So
the components that are before you are simply the hardware, the software, and the system. So
that's what I have, Chair.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh. So, you know, a couple of fast ones for, for the Chairman. Under
your 900,000, Mr. Teruya, you have integrating GIS and aerial photography. So part of this
900,000 is to do an updated aerial -COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Flyover.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --flyover? Thank you, Mr. White. Is that part of the 900,000 request?
MR. TERUYA: No, Chair. The, the aerial photography or the pictometry I believe was acquired by, I
believe, it's the 911 system. We, to this date, have not used the photography, aerial photography
as part of any of our processes of inspection or anything. So right now we don't have the
capability or we may, possibly it may be available. It's just we haven't been able to use it.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And then one last one before I ask the Committee, that was brought
up by Mr. Medeiros, and again, Members, Mr. Medeiros is available. Part of the flyover details
that he shared with us was regarding this 4-inch versus 3-inch, I guess, pixel strength. Do you
have any comments to the Committee regarding what would be preferred by the Division
regarding the pictometry requirements, since Police is going for 4-inch. as I recall? Mr. Ching, if
you can share some comments, please? Do you folks want Mr. Medeiros to join us? He's
available.
MR. CHING: Chair, really as I understand it and I have some documents in front of me, the, the matter
is cost for the greater resolution, and it's whether or not the Real Property Tax assessors really
need the greater level of detail in order to make their decisions. So again we're going to have to
see that and assess that and decide which is the better one for the Real Property Tax purposes. I
mean there's different grades. I don't know if they'll need survey grade or if they'll need to just
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see in general and be able to make, you know, use larger pixels to make their decisions. It's
going to have to depend on their, what they determine is best.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, okay. Would you know what our sister counties utilize if, if they
have this pictometry tool as part of their real property tax? Mr. Medeiros, I don't know if you
have information, but if you know what the sister counties utilize regarding the 4-inch versus
3-inch pixel strength, if you can, if you have some comment you could share with the
Committee, that would be appreciated. You have? Yeah, if you do, please come forward.
Thank you very much for making yourself available. Again, Mr. Medeiros, you, you've heard
the question and again, the Committee is just looking for some guidance, yeah, regarding the
appropriation.
MR. MEDEIROS: Yeah. Just, just to kind of go over what I mentioned yesterday -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
MR. MEDEIROS: --is that yes, it comes in...the, the two best qualities of pictometry is 4-inch pixel
and 3-inch pixel. It...obviously the more accuracy, the better your analysis. So if you're gonna
do something, you're gonna do it much more accurate. Yes, there is the difference in price. I
gave you guys the prices yesterday, and idea is to take a look at it from that point now. At some
point, you know, if you decide to stay with 4-inch pixels, you can always move to 3-inch at the,
at the time.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. MEDEIROS: In terms of internal use, in terms of whatever system they design, if it uses
pictometry, it uses pictometry. All right, then so as long as they spec that as part of their product
or part of their system, then it's a judgment call. Do you want the Cadillac, do you want the
Chevrolet? And so...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah. And, and if the Committee understood, right, from last night,
Mr. Medeiros, Police is...has, I guess, a RFP out to do a flyby for to update the County? Is that
correct? Only certain sections, though?
MR. MEDEIROS: Actually, the current contract with the 911 Statewide -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
MR. MEDEIROS: --included the, the reflight and so, and it's underway State, again, Statewide.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. And for our County is that Countywide or, or is some areas going to
be excluded from the current, the updated flyby as you understand it?
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MR. MEDEIROS: If it's the same as the, the current data, this current area that's covered, the only area
that will not be included would be Haleakala.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Haleakala?
MR. MEDEIROS: At the very top, yeah. But all of the areas with housing -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
MR. MEDEIROS: --would be included all the way up Crater Road. But for the most park, National
Park is not included.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And, and when would that information be made available to the
County and is that would be in a pictometry format, like a 4-inch pixel format already for us?
MR. MEDEIROS: Yes. And so the, the State contract calls for 4-inch and it'll be a second delivery of
pictometry data, and it will work in any pictometry software. They're EFS, Electronic Field
Study, whatever system, if they use a custom system at real property and it works in any GIS
system, including the ArcEditor licenses that we have.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Right. Okay. And when, when would that may be available to the County's
use and benefit?
MR. MEDEIROS: When I spoke with the pictometry regional sales guy, he says end of the year.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Calendar year?
MR. MEDEIROS: This, yeah, the calendar year. The, that's always with a grain of salt because of the
cloud issue, right -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Sure.
MR. MEDEIROS: --in terms of delivery. And so that's, that's the...usually the thing that slows down,
and, and that's what slowed it down the first time around. That's why it took -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. MEDEIROS: --awhile to do.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And then just so we're clear, what was EFS again please, Mr. Medeiros?
MR. MEDEIROS: Oh. So the, the, the pictometry comes with its own software called Electronic Field
Study --
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. MEDElROS: --right, and so when you buy the product, that comes with it and then you can then
use it in other things as well. So EFS is just part of the, the delivery. And so for the average
person who would use it, that didn't use say a custom or a GIS based, would just use EFS and go
in and do the measurements in that.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Couch, questions for either Mr. Ching, Mr. Medeiros,
Mr. Teruya, or Mr. Baz.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I think it's going to be--thank you, Chair--I think it's going to be for
Mr. Ching or for Mr. -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ching, if you could please come down and -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --Mr. Teruya.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --maybe you can just stay on the side, too, Bill, that...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So everybody just be right there, I guess.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Let's get comfy.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'm, I'm assuming, Mr. Teruya, you, you probably did most of the
spec'ing for the software and have then sent it to the Department of Management for the specs?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, bring up the, the seat, Mr. Teruya.
MR. TERUYA: Thank you, Mr. Couch. At this time, we haven't put, pulled any of the specs yet for
the, for the MIS division to review.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Hmm...only, the only reason I ask is 'cause there's a software, you
know, we're talking about resolution required, pixel resolution. Does the software...now this
software is the one that is gonna change, look at one picture and look at the next to see if there's
any change, right? Sometimes they have resolution requirements. Does that software have
resolution requirements?
MR. TERUYA: Right now I don't know the answer to that question. It might be better to maybe call
MIS up here to answer that question.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, whatever. That, that, Mr. Chair, that would be the key
component to the, to whether we get the 3 or 4 pixel, not necessarily this time, but that, that is
something that we have to consider. If it's okay with 4 pixel, I mean looking at the pictures we
saw the other day, you know, looking at whether a house has a shed or a, a cottage, we don't care
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if they have cracks in the tile . . .(laughter). . . you know, which is the difference in the, in the
three to four, right? But I don't know, maybe Mr. Teruya would need that. The, the other
question is, and again this is probably Mr. Teruya, we talked about priority areas yesterday
because of it costs so much per area. What...it's my understanding from the discussions as a
result of the TIG group and, and everything else, that the main reason for this is to look at
agricultural properties to see if they're, they are what they say they are. Is that correct?
MR. TERUYA: That is, that is a part of it. The TIG Committee recommended or went through their
discussions and identified that this is a tool that would be useful for the Department. From my
standpoint, pictometry and the new computer system is good because it, it creates more integrity
in your system, you lessen your errors, be able to, you know, can map, map a lot of, lot of
neighborhoods to see whether or not parcels are in the right neighborhood or not. These are, this
is technology that we've never had before. I mean even when you're looking at my, our website,
this only just came out last year. So, you know, all these areas come, come to the forefront now
but because technology has changed. So it's not like we can't do with our existing software, but
if you want a better, more integrity in your system, this is the way to go.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Sure.
MR. TERUYA: And this is what most municipalities are going to now.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. And, and I guess my, my...major concern on the question is
what are the priority areas? 'Cause we, I think Mr. Medeiros mentioned South, West, and
Central Maui first and then agricultural later, and it didn't really, wasn't really going to work for
agriculture which kind of surprised me as well.
MR. TERUYA: I don't think we have on one area in specific that is more important than the other,
because, you know, from our real property tax standpoint, you never pick on one geographic
area. So we would want the entire area. I can see if whether or not we have Haleakala, it really
wouldn't matter to us because all that area is Conservation.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
MR. TERUYA: So our, our biggest challenge over the past, even looking at Earth Google, which is,
you know, five years, five year old pictures, you still can't get Molokai, Lanai, and some remote
areas in Hana. So, you know, this pictometry data is interesting to us to see what is already
existing. Whether it's three or four mega...you know, I really don't know 'cause I haven't really
seen what, what it is. So once we see it, we'll be able to give you a better response as to what,
what level of detail we would want. But obviously the better detail that you have is just that
much, that much better imagery.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. And as Mr. Ching said, they're looking at possibly doing an
RFP in July or August and having the results of this, of a study done by the end of the year, the
calendar year. If you were to get...obviously you're going to have to do an RFP for the...the
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CAMA software, right? And if you were to get that out and get everything installed and do what
it takes, what, what do you see as a really viable timeline to actually expend the 900,000? And
the reason I ask is, do you think we can get it done in time for you to do your assessments
for...obviously it's not going to happen for this tax period, but for the next, upcoming tax period
which is going to be, what, March 15th, yeah?
MR. TERUYA: Yeah. Realistically, you...the, the earliest I can see it is being, doing the RFP and
going out for the vendor by the end of the fiscal year, and that takes you into June 2013, right,
and then once that is taken place, you're still going to have to map everything out. There's going
to be a big conversion project from our existing system to the next. It'll be easier if it's the same
vendor that we have now.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Sure.
MR. TERUYA: But if that is not chosen, then you, you gotta deal with a new company and you gotta
have the conversion and you gotta do all your testing and make sure everything is going to
balance.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Let me just make sure I heard it correct. You don't think the
RFP would even be ready until June of...or go out to RFP till June of 2013?
MR. TERUYA: I, I would think by the end of the fiscal year we should be able to identify somebody
for-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: End of the next fiscal year?
MR. TERUYA: This coming fiscal year, June, ending 2013.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, right.
MR. TERUYA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: All right. So in essence we don't really need the 980,000 in this new,
this Budget coming up? It's the next Budget is where you're looking at?
MR. TERUYA: I, I would say the system for the CAMA system, the 900,000 you're very likely that,
that could be encumbered at the end of the fiscal year. Whether the computer replacement
happened in a future calendar year, a future fiscal year, that potentially may be...and the
software, I would say the software is something that would probably be needed this fiscal year,
because we're working, we're already working with the GIS. So that is the licensing issue to the
ArcEditor, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. And you have been working--just to get this straight--you have
been working with MIS in this process all along or are you just getting them involved now?
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MR. TERUYA: No, we've, we've gone out earlier in the year and this is where that whole, this whole
project that Dave is talking about, about whether or not we go for it now or there's a bigger plan.
So, you know, we did a request for a RFP earlier. That triggered maybe this study to say maybe
we should take a step back and relook at the entire process. So that's...we've been in discussion
for quite some time now. It's just we just wanna see which, which way we're going to go from
here.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. I, I'm good for now.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: We can come back to you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's real enlightening. So thank you.
MR. CHING: Chair, Chair, can I comment on, on Mr. Couch's question, please?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ching.
MR. CHING: Thank you. One of the other elements besides our CAMA and appraisal troubles is also
that our land system KIVA is also getting to the end of its life cycle. So that is why it, it needs to
be replaced soon, and because CAMA and GIS and pictometry and, and our permit land system
all act together as one, all require elements of each other, that's what triggered our need or our
desire to step back, look at it as a holistic point of view and say, okay, hey, we gotta replace two
of these major elements now or very soon, we've gotta take action soon, so let's make sure we
do it right so that these major elements can communicate with each other and can support each
other, and that it can provide us with the data we need when we need it. So that's the, the second
big reason for us stepping back and saying, okay, hey, let's not just go for an RFP now, but let's
take a look at it first, assess it, do it as quickly as we can. And hopefully within, within we
know that we're taking CAMA and appraisal as being the primary, the first priority because that
is our collection. So we're, we're hoping that within the fourth quarter, third or even fourth
quarter of this fiscal year that we can start encumbering that money and we can start on the
project. So it's, it's really getting that assessment done, then go ahead and making that, the
action plan to, to get the, the systems changed, and then moving forward. So we do intend to put
some serious effort into it, and, and I hope that helps you make your decision. So thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So, Mr. Ching, if we heard right, within the next 21/2 months you folks
gonna try and get a contract squared away to encumber monies this current fiscal year for this
project?
MR. CHING: Sorry, Chair, it was the...would be the third or fourth quarter of the next fiscal year, of
the coming fiscal year. So that would be probably around January through June of next calendar
year.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. No, I think what you guys trying to do is, is very good stuff. My
only disappointment is took this long for you guys to realize this is what we needed to do since
KIVA is pretty old stuff, you know using ESRI.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I know, dinosaurs were running on the earth, yeah, at that time.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I do have a follow-up on that if...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino, questions for our resource people?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. David, so you're really, all of this change really we'd be
looking at the very earliest, middle of, earlier next calendar year?
MR. CHING: Most likely.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Most likely, yeah.
MR. CHING: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I mean...and, and then you could before then decide what you
wanted as far as the overall program, whether we get the Cadillac, the Chevy, or whatever?
MR. CHING: Correct, with, with the, the results of the assessment.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: With the results of the assessment.
MR. CHING: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And you'll bring that back to us to take a look at and...
MR. CHING: Oh, sure.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. Are you aware of, of other municipalities that have
such a system as you're thinking about, one that connects KIVA with, with all the other elements
of what the County operation entails?
MR. CHING: Chair.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ching.
MR. CHING: Yes, we actually have had demonstrations and seen other software platforms that do
combine quite a bit of varied sources of information and that do present the data the way that
we'd like to have it. What we don't know is what's best for us and what's best for us within our
current environment, with, within our current budget constraints, within our current personnel
resource constraints. So that's why we, we haven't just jumped and, and procured something, or
that's why we haven't just come out and said, this is what we're gonna do. We're, we're coming
and saying, hey, we wanna make sure we're going to do it right. These are major, these are big
things. I mean if we make a mistake on either one, it will cost us dearly in lost operations,
potential damages because of incorrect data going out there, assessments, appraisals. We could
make bad decisions on permits, zoning. It could really, really cost us. So we wanna make sure
we're doing it right and that we don't have to come back in ten years and say, hey, it's outdated,
we, we didn't, we didn't make we didn't make plans for upgrades. And we wanna make sure
that what we do is, is a good system and robust and provides us with what we need.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I, I don't think you said anything I would disagree with. The, the
question in my mind is if there are municipalities where this is already done, I'm just questioning
whether it's going to cost us 300,000 out of our pocket as opposed to asking...I would guess
there's probably three or four vendors that have this level of, of, of software and have, have the
ability to fly in here and show you everything that they can do. Obviously you'd want to have
somebody that knows where the, the, the soft parts of their system are. But I'm just wondering
if, if the full 300,000 is, is required or whether we can do it some other way.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, I'd like to bring down Jacob Verkerke. He's the one that has been kind of
designing what this is looking like. It's not that...even though that another municipality may be
using the exact same items that we want to do, it's not something that we could just pull off of a
shelf and, and -COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No, I understand.
MR. BAZ: --stick in. So there is components that as I was asking about if this needs to be in the Budget
or not, that Mr. Verkerke had the discussion on.
MR. VERKERKE: Mr. Chair.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Verkerke, thanks for joining us.
MR. VERKERKE: Thank you. We have done some research and over the last year, year and a half to
look at what, what's out there in the marketplace and what other jurisdictions are doing. To go
back to the earlier question, yeah, there are vendors that have the total package. What we have
learned from the research is that every jurisdiction, every organization is different, and we want
to be able to control the effort and, and the outcome of this effort and not depend on strictly or
primarily on the experience of a particular vendor with a jurisdiction that may or may not appear
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to be similar to the circumstances we're dealing with. I think that the amount of money involved
in the long-term plans--replacing both systems over the next few years--justifies spending the
money on, on this assessment to make sure that we have a well-defined road map that is suitable
for our environment and our requirements and expectations. Three hundred thousand dollars is
based on fairly preliminary increase with vendors that could provide this assessment. I think that
we will be able to do it for less money, but I want to be...I, I'm not sure about that because we
haven't gone out with the detailed RFP. We haven't been in a position to ask consultants to do
this kind of work, what exactly would cost, 'cause we would have to spend the time that
Mr. Ching was talking about, two months, preparing a statement of work and, and an RFP with
enough detail for a consultant to respond to. But from what I have gathered, I think $300,000
will allow us to do the job and, and I expect we'll have a little bit leftover.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you. And the other I question I had, Mr. Chair, if you don't
mind, the, the issue of pictometry. My recollection from our discussions yesterday was that the,
the 4-inch resolution pictometry is available now and will be part of the overflights throughout,
by the end of the year. So the question in my mind is whether that pictometry is compatible with
our current RPT system and whether... 'cause I'm not sure that we need to spend the money for
the higher, the more...the higher resolution or the more frequent flights or the earlier flights. My
sense is that if we can get the, the current level of pictometry and the flights by the end of the
year, that's going to be just fine. But maybe if I could ask Mr. Medeiros if he's had a chance to
take a look at the RPT website and can tell us whether that is similar to 4-inch or whether that's a
lower resolution than 4-inch?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Medeiros, are you able to answer that question first? Thank you,
Mr. Verkerke, for your comments.
MR. MEDEIROS: The current Real Property, Real Property website I believe is the, QPublic is the
company that produces that. I believe they use the...I guess the Bing maps version -COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Uh-huh.
MR. MEDEIROS: --of pictometry which is a lower resolution, okay, and it's because it's served over
the Web. Memory serves me right in discussions with the vendor when they were looking at
imagery sources, that I think they could use it if it was say pushed out through pictometry online
and there was an agreement between the two, that they could do it, and it just becomes a matter
of getting to go out. But it' s...pictometry is used by a lot by property tax appraisers nationally.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah. I'm just trying to get...
MR. MEDEIROS: And so I, I think it's, I don't think it...there, there's an issue with the software.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: So the, the question is...it sounds like the 4-inch resolution is an
upgrade from what is currently available on, on Bing maps?
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MR. MEDElROS: Yes. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay.
MR. MEDElROS: It's the same imagery, but on Bing it's re-sampled to a lower resolution.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Oh, okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
MR. MEDElROS: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Mateo. Mr. Carroll, Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I've been listening intently to all of this discussion and, of course,
a lot of it, I'm sorry I have to say I'm not a techie. A lot of it is probably more than I am able to
really understand. However, I do have a very good appreciation of the technology and the use
and how it can help us. For me the bottom line that I need to know in budget work is how much
money do you need and when do you need it? And I'm going to have to rely on you guys as
those who have the education and training to give us that recommendation, and I'm receptive to
that. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Gentlemen, you heard the gentlewoman's simple question.
MR. CHING: Chair.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ching.
MR. CHING: At the risk of getting in trouble with my boss...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Do you need a huddle, do you need time to huddle?
MR. CHING: I'll go a little bit out on a limb and, and put this out there. If, if it would make this
Council happier or more comfortable, there, there's no problem with us going out, go ahead
doing our assessment, getting our plans made and then coming back and, and asking for funds to
actually begin the projects. We wouldn't be averse to that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Mr. Chair.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I find that completely satisfactory. You know, it's much, much better
that we have some definite information, because we could sit here for hours, you know,
discussing back and forth all the possibilities, but I'm a bottom line kind of person. Come with
your good reason, tell me why you need it, and then I can buy into it. Thank you.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, that's a no nonsense approach, approach for sure. So thank
you for the, the comment, Mr. Ching. And you know if I recall Mr. Verkerke explaining how
these computer, desktop computers...I don't know if this is the computer replacement, the 55?
Is that part, that's not anything to do with that? Okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I was just curious. In, in that case, that sounds like a big need, but,
you know, again I think I'm looking forward to, I suppose, you folks go back, do the legwork
and then return to us, and that's a good plan for me. Thank you, Chair.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So, Mr. Teruya, hearing, you know, the Committee ask their
questions and give their comments and from your other departments, what do you need in this
coming Budget?
MR. TERUYA: Yeah. Well, look, going over the, the list that's before you, I guess one of the
questions is whether or not we can be ready for the RFP at the end of this fiscal year. And I
would assume, you know, just on my behalf, I would say the 900,000 is something that could be
accomplished. The computer software of 25,000 for the ArcEditor software is required for this
fiscal year. Realistically by the time we implement a vendor and the time that we're going to
need the equipment for the computers, it very likely it could be the following fiscal year as well.
It, it might be a better time to come back to you on the computer equipment anyway, because,
you know, I don't really know the specs of what is going to be required of the computer system.
That's probably from the vendor's standpoint, going to be able to tell us what, what type of, you
know, RAM we're going to need, 'cause, you know, as, as we all know as Mr. Medeiros
mentioned before, that we're talking about terabytes on imagery. We're not just talking about,
you know, something that our existing computer can do. So at that time, I would say the
computer replacement could, could wait. I also believe that the, the money that they talked about
for the study, I, I'm not going to comment as to how much money, but I think the study is a very
good idea where it will put us in a better place to identify what are the needs at that, that time.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, very good. Maybe for Mr. Ching then, before you do the RFP,
because it's going to be part of an impact to the total Countywide computer system, then I would
say from the Council's standpoint, you need to talk to the Clerk, our Clerk who's responsible to
maintaining all those voter registration requirements, documentation of ordinances, resolutions,
maintenance of all those records that by Charter they're required to maintain on the people's
behalf. So maybe part of the scope of your RFP would consider other things that the system
does provide support for in our branch of service as well, including the appropriate ability to
have redactions done to provide for the privacy and security of individuals as required by law.
MR. CHING: Chair.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 2, 2012

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ching.
MR. CHING: That certainly will be a part of, of the assessment requirement.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any further questions for our resource, whether it be Mr. Verkerke
on down...Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. And, and perhaps at this point just an
observation. While we've been talking about a system that provides connectivity, the discussion
that we've had between the sources somehow lacks that. So, I think it would be a lot more
beneficial to us if the bodies just got together, hashed it out, what the hell you need, what it's
going to cost, when we need it and the like, and then provide that to us. It might be a little easier
than playing this piecemeal and merry-go-round. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh. No, no, thank you. Again, you know, we, we take part of that
responsibility 'cause we're driving the improvements that we want for RPT.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Understood.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. So part of it is coming from this Committee itself. Anything else,
Members, regarding this component of the Budget overview? Therefore, Mr. Verkerke,
Mr. Medeiros, Mr. Teruya, Mr. Ching...okay, having none, gentlemen, we thank you for your
time and participation this afternoon.
MR. CHING: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Members, we're going to take a five minute recess and then the boss
will be back heading the Committee again. So we'll take a recess till 2:20. . . . (gavel).. .

RECESS:

2:18 p.m.

RECONVENE:

2:25 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA:
. . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Okay, Members, we've heard from Mr. Medeiros as well as Mr. Ching and
Mr. Teruya. I'm going to come back to that one item after we review what we reviewed this
morning. So if you all can turn to page, first of all, Page 23...23, Kepaniwai Heritage Garden
Improvements. Members, I've made a recommendation to the Parks Department in reducing the
request by $130,000 and provided for the improvements, Chair had recommended $300,000,
and, you know, like I told the Parks Department, you know, Chair will entertain any amendment
in regards to overage in regards to the particular project at Kepaniwai Heritage Gardens. And,
and my whole objective in this case here is to ensure that, you know, we don't have major cost
overruns whenever we do a project. So this will give the Department an opportunity to try and
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hit that mark or if it does go over, then he'll come back for a budget amendment. Do I have
consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The next one is on page 24, Duke Maliu Park Improvements.
And I understand that what is required for this fiscal year is $50,000 rather than the $250,000.
So the Chair is going to insert $50,000 for the design to replace...for the park improvements. Do
I have consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, just a real quick question on that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Before the, the discussion started about the lights because the lights
were an emergency thing, I think Mr. Mateo had mentioned something about a parking lot or
something is what that was supposed to be for.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Mr. Chair, the 200,000 included paving of the park area that's been
pending for last couple of years. So, you know, all it does is it prevents our people from parking
along the side of the road.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. So what I can do is proviso then $50,000 for the design of the light
replacement.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So are we going leave the 250 in there?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Consensus, right?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Page 31. For South Maui Community Park, we're gonna provide
information in regards to Parks Department working with a private entity in regards to the design
of the, the gymnasium as well as looking to adding a facility for youth services. According to
the Director, they're going to be including in that design, a meeting space already, and as far as
the room for your history things, they're going to be looking into that particular design, the
memorabilia of probably South Maui...exhibit--I'm sorry--exhibit, exhibit room is all it's going
to be. So we're going to add that into this particular area. Do I have consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. For Lahaina area, we're going to add $35,000 for the design for field
lights at the Lahaina Rec Center, and it's going to come out from Park Assessments. Do I have
consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay. For the Fire Department, Page 7...we heard the Chief this
morning. So the Chair is going to recommend that we add three Fire Fighter III positions for the
Lahaina tanker. Do I have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, one "no". Okay. On page...page, page page...yeah, that's it. Okay.
What was discussed earlier after lunch was the equipment purchase for Real Property Tax
Division, Page 5, increase for Real Property Tax computer equipment. Chair is recommending,
recommending that we move forward--although I've heard the statements made by Mr. Ching as
well as Mr. Medeiros that there seems to be, in my opinion, you know, how do we control, you
know, the services that we, we want to provide for all of the department? And when I look at the
return of the Real Property Tax Division, by enhancing their requirements, I think we can offset
that particular cost with probably the increase in real property tax revenues that will derive from
this particular request that Mr. Teruya is making. So I, I just want your comment. Mr. Carroll,
you have any comments in regards to the Chair moving forward on the purchase of the
pictometry equipment for Real Property Tax Division along with the hardware and software?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: We had some discussion on this already and one option was for
them to come back with actual estimates, but I don't have a problem with it either way.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. And my whole fear is that, you know, it may lag and we
may lose an opportunity. Ms. Baisa.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I'm not really clear as to whether we should go ahead with
spending, putting this money in now. That, that's the question for me.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's not that I don't want to give them the equipment, I definitely do, and
I think like you, that the payback will be there. But for me it's a timing issue, and I'm not really
clear because all the discussion was not clear.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, and that's my dilemma. The discussion was not clear, so what do we
do to support Real Property Tax Division?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, what we asked them and I think it's pretty clear, we asked them to
come back and tell us when they need it and what they need, and we don't have that as we're
making this decision, and it's a lot of money to put in here if they're not going to use it. We
could use it someplace else for sure.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. I, I hear you. Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. Thank you, Chair. I see the dilemma, but also I see your
point too that set it aside, it might urge them and, you know, motivate them to want to jump on
and get on that same page that we all want to see and move this thing forward. I think the payoff
from this is, is gonna be exponential and well worth it. So, I mean I can support you, Chair, you
know, you feel we have this money to put here, then, then I can support you. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And, and, you know, having conversation with Mr. Teruya,
there's things that were discussed that this is capable of, okay, like the permitting
process...so...and, and gathering information, you know, real time. Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And having done a lot of systems analysis and
whatnot, the first thing you have to do is set expectations. I'd like to set expectations of the
Members is that having heard what they said, getting the software won't happen until the end of
this next, this coming fiscal year -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --and then implementing it won't happen until in the middle of the
following fiscal year. So we're talking about assessments in 2014 if we were to start today,
so...and if were to start today, you still aren't going to get any bang for the buck...maybe
towards the end of this coming fiscal year. And we've been telling Parks Department, we've
been telling all the other departments that say, you know what, we'll cut you down and then
when you're ready, come back for a budget amendment. This is exactly the same thing. They're
not going to be ready until June, August...I mean April, May, or June they said. So if...and
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that's if they're right on it and, and ready to go. So, I suggest we do what we're doing with
everything else, just saying we'll put in let's say 80,000 for the equipment that he needs, the Arc
and all that, and then when you're ready, come back to us and, and do a budget amendment, and
everybody here is ready for that. I would love for it to be happening right now today, but as you
heard for, for tax year 2014 is gonna be the earliest, earliest we're gonna see any results of that.
So...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, I realize that. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So it's, it would be my suggestion to take out 900,000 because we do
need it elsewhere, we've been arguing about it for the whole week over around $900,000 worth
of stuff, and then have them come back when it's, when it's...if they're ready before the
beginning of next fiscal. We'll be done with the next Budget before we know if they need it or
not.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Let's put it this way, I not going be here the next Budget.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's right, that's right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And sometimes we forget.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah. Oh, no, I'm not gonna forget or anyone here's gonna forget.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I, I know.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We won't forget.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I treat RPT very different from departments, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Me, too.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: These people bring in money. Other departments tend to spend money. So,
I don't view that in the same way and hold them on the same litmus test. So with my druthers,
I'd rather go now, I rather make sure they get the money and if anything, I want this project
expedited. I don't wanna wait. So my thing is they should be getting on their horses and getting
all those pre-July 1 st new fiscal year requirements done now, so July 1 st they can already release
the RFPs and not wait for July 1 st for start doing the paperwork. Okay. 'Cause just what we did
in the short time working with RPT regarding Ordinance 3768 which required the AOAOs or the
management companies to report actual use of the condominium or commercial category, RPT
brought in for Fiscal Year '13, $965,000. Okay. That already paid for this 980. Okay. We
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adjusted agricultural and dedication use, so for this coming year we're going to realize another
$1.15 million. Reduced litigation because of our ability to clear up backlog real property tax
appeals. So we went from a 9.3 to a balance of 2.7 million because we've made these
adjustments in appeals. Through Ordinance 3842 which we passed, we brought in 604
delinquent homeowners back to paying, paying their bills, that's another 400. And the key one
was compliance of homeowner's exemption, Chairman. We had 721 homes that did not qualify.
Because of additional efforts in compliance, and again compliance is the key word, they
brought...this is going to bring in another $1.7 million in additional revenue. So for me,
Chairman, I have no problem spending 980 when already we know we're going to get the
payback multiple folds. And just by our small efforts they've already paid for the system that
they're requesting us to purchase. So, I have no problem for a revenue generator to ask me for
this consideration because I expect greater revenues in the near future. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you for mentioning those things because-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Doesn't matter to me.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --four years ago we added manpower to the Real Property Tax Division, LTAs
mind you, LTAs, and we brought in $2 million, and those two LTAs cost the County $60,000.
So, I, I really do have faith in, in the Real Property Tax Division and I don't mind supporting
them in their request either. Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, you said it all well and Mr. Hokama covered it, and I agree,
this is our, this is our economic engine right here. So give 'em what they need and I hope, I
agree with the other comments, let's get going, you know, let's not wait any longer. Because
with this enhancement how much more can we truly collect and make right? Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I, I agree. I think that, I think if we set aside the
funds in this year's Budget, it may allow for the system to be put in place earlier than they've
stated, and I'd like to think that by, by moving ahead in this Budget year that we can, we can see
results earlier than was estimated. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Chairman Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Mr. Chair, thank you for the opportunity. A little while ago when we
were having the discussion, I, I told the various departments that, that were here that we, we're
talking about a system with a lot of connectivity, and what I saw with them discussing with us
was very little of that. They weren't sure about the whys, the hows, how we're going to work it
out, what the deadlines are. So, I told them, you know, my preference is come back with a plan.
Mr. Chair, you know, you and Mr. Hokama reminded me, one, that I too will not be here; and
secondly, from Mr. Hokama, this Department from all the departments we have is one that
comes with a lot of confidence, you know, on my part. I believe in the leadership of Real
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Property Division, and for us the benefits had been, had been many And like, like yourself
who's not going to be here, I can look at providing support in them moving their request forward
at this time. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Those are the areas that...let me ask you guys, do I have
consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We're going to take a roll call vote.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: But, Mr. Chair -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --can I say one more thing?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Even if we, you know, even if everybody votes to put the $900,000 in,
which is, looks like that's the way it's going to go, I want to set everybody's expectations, there
will be no income from this money until 2014. Even if you bought it today, you have to put it
together, you have to do the assessments. I want to set everybody's expectations, no income
until the 20...tax year 2014, and I think Mr. Teruya would agree with me. And I want to ask
him.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure. Mr. Teruya. And I agree with you, but if you don't start -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: That's right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --when we're going to start receiving those taxes, 2015?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And again, we can buy right now and say let's get this one and it
doesn't work with anything else, and we're going to spend a lot of taxpayers' money trying to
get everything to work together.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Teruya.
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MR. TERUYA: Chair, the, the purchase of the system obviously wouldn't come on-line for another
fiscal, two fiscal years. The, the question is correct. I mean there won't be revenue coming in
from this new system immediately, but...you know, it's something that is looking for the future.
These are all trends that... everybody else in the municipalities are doing. Our system is at the
end of its life. You know, a lot of the things that we're trying to do are not supported with our
current system because it is dated, even the use of pictometry. We've been trying to find the
alternative to keep with our existing system and use pictometry. So we tried to contract this
company to, to integrate both, both components as a Band-Aid. And I guess, you know, several
days went by and we really, it came back...it just doesn't work with our current system. So, I
mean we can try to find ways and, you know, if we don't get the appropriation, we're going to go
status quo. But I think it's a good investment, but it's really up to the Members 'cause I realize
the amount of money it costs. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Last statement before we vote. I'll be voting "no" on putting the money
in this year's proposal, and I'm not doing that because I don't believe in this or what it can do or
whatever. I'm just very realistic about time and how it operates here at the County, and I just...I
will be the happiest person in the world if I'm proven wrong. And as far as who's gonna be here
and who's not gonna be here, none of us have a guarantee that we'll be here tomorrow, much
worse next year. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any more comments? Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair, and everyone has put it most eloquently. I, I...no one's
wrong, everybody actually is correct in what they're saying. But I agree with you and I agree
with Chair Hokama, unless we start taking positive steps today, how long more before we
accomplish what we need to accomplish. So this is just giving the Department that financial arm
to go start working on the problem and trying to solve it as soon as possible. So...and there's no
right, no wrong answer in this one. This is one of those that just your heart tells you what to do
and hopefully, we'll all be right in a few years whether we're here or not. Whether the good lord
grants us that wish or not, we'll still show that the people of Maui County will get what is due to
them through the proper work through the, the RPT.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. I said earlier being a non-technical person, I
didn't have much problem with either way. But after all the discussion and thinking about what
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the departments did and Mr. Ching, that he didn't have any problem with the assessment that
Mr. Couch had made. Since that came from him and that Department saying that he didn't have
a problem with it, makes a problem for me. I think there's enough votes to where it will pass
out, this money will pass out. But I will concur with Mr. Ching and Mr. Couch, and I'll be
voting "no", just because when the Department gives us that kind of answer, it seems to me that
perhaps Mr. Couch's evaluation is the right way to go. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The Chair would like to make one last comment. You know, I,
I've supported the Real Property Tax Division for the last five years, including placing people in
the Department so that we could go after delinquent taxes, and, and at the time we had a
delinquency of over $10 million, and it has gone down. So, I believe in, in the Real Property Tax
Division in saying that I need manpower to, to do my job, we gave 'em the manpower, and we
had unbelievable results in gaining back most of the delinquency. We still have, we still have.
And as far as the, the...where people challenge the County in regards to the real property tax
area, you know, Mr. Ching and I, we worked hard with the State of Hawaii in trying to pass bills
so that we could go after some of those assessments that was owed to the County. So for me I
have no problems, I have no problems in supporting the Tax Division. Okay, the Chair is going
to call for the question. All in favor of the...I want a motion to include the $980,000 in this
year's Budget.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved, Mr. Chair.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Second.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Moved by Member Victorino, second by Member Hokama. Any more
discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair, I'd like to call for a roll call, please.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure. Thank you. Okay. Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes, aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Couch.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And the Chairman votes "aye". There's six "ayes", three "noes". Motion is
carried.
VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Cochran,
Mateo, Victorino, and White.
NOES: Councilmembers Baisa, Carroll, and Couch.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So we'll include $980,000 in this year's Budget. Thank you, Members. And
thank you, Mr. Teruya, for being here. Oh, one, one more thing. The capabilities of this
program that we're gonna get, also we have the capability of doing the building permits or the
permitting and, and what else?
MR. TERUYA: From what I saw at the annual conference--which is a conference that even if anybody
would want to go it's in September in Kansas City--it's...there's vendors...the system that what,
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what I saw was they included the real property tax module, they had a real property tax billing, it
had water, had refuse, it had sewer, it had permitting, planning, and the other departments. So
it's all built integrated. And one of the things that's encouraging is the current process is like
when we get a building permit, then our building, our building appraisers or our clerks need to
enter street addresses, you know, permit information. With an integrated system, from the time
the person applies for a building permit, the address, the name, the permit, all that is entered and
already dispersed to all the different departments. So it's not double entry on anybody's part or a
fat-finger mistake. So that's kind of where I think the enhancements would take this County to,
where everybody would be looking through one central system.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay, Members...
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
MR. BAZ: I just wanted to clarify that what the components that he just mentioned aren't included in
the $900,000. Those are, those are possibilities.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Add-ons. Yeah, I understand that.
MR. BAZ: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA. Like any system.
MR. BAZ: Yes, correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA. Like any system.
MR. BAZ: And, and I've reviewed his...some of the systems and they're incredible systems that look,
you know, like it would benefit the County incredibly. So...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. We, we had a system to electronically do our paychecks that had all
kind capabilities, but you know how that happened, what happened to that. So...okay...
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Do you want me to talk about that, sir?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, I'm just going to continue on...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: 'Cause I can tell you exactly what happened with that.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: I just going to continue on, Mr. Couch.
MR. BAZ: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Chair. Thank you, Committee, for voting on, on putting this money
in, and we will move forward as quickly as possible on this. One of the discussion items as we
talked about it, was the study that needs to happen ahead of time. So, I hope when we get to
MIS, that remember that, that $300,000 for that study so that we can get going as soon as
possible. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Okay. On Page 7, Chair's recommendation, I need a
motion to add three Fire Fighter III positions for the Lahaina tanker.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I move to add three Fire Fighter III positions for the Lahaina tanker.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Moved by Member Cochran, second by Member Victorino. Members,
any discussion? Seeing none--oh, Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah. As I said, I have a problem adding where I think we've been able
to cover the tanker responsibilities through overtime at a far less cost than bringing on three new
positions. And the vacancy list of 38 individuals with 12 completely vacant...leads me to
believe that they can continue to handle this with their current E/P count. So, I'll be voting "no".
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. All in favor of the motion, please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any opposed?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Roll call.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Roll call. Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, the Chair vote "aye". There are six "ayes"; three "noes";
Member Baisa, Member--who else?--White, and Chairman Mateo. Motion carried.

VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Carroll,
Cochran, Couch, and Victorino.
NOES: Councilmembers Baisa, Mateo, and White.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .0kay.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 2, 2012

. . . Staff, do we have any more revisit on the County--only the County stuff? I think I took care
all that, right?
MR. KANESHINA: So...Mr. Chair, not including grants.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Not including grants?
MR. KANESHINA: Just a sec.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I thought we had...
MR. KANESHINA: Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah. Chair, we have the MIS, I believe.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: MIS. What page?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Page 13.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thirteen? Staff?
MR. KANESHINA: Yeah. Page, Page 13 is the next one. I'll, I'll inform you of the other ones after
you do this one.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
. . . Okay. We'll take the first one, reduce desktop computer replacement. Chair's
recommendation is to remove $460,000 for computer replacement. And we've heard
Mr. Verkerke about the five-year, I guess, replacement cycle. I don't know how many
computers. He had mentioned there's between 1,300 and 1,400 computers, and if you look at a
five-year cycle, it's about a little...a little under 300 computers per year, but we gotta start.
That's the thing, we gotta start. Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. And the other part what he said was 600 of them, 660 of
them were seven years older, older. And, Mr. Chair, I would be--well, we'll see what your
recommendation is--but if we change that number to 200,000, that would kind of be halfway or
300,000, it would be halfway and, and-CHAIR PONTANILLA: You got our information regarding how much one computer costs?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: He said $1,000-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thousand dollars?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --plus a little extra for software and repair and maintenance schedules.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So that'd be 200.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Two hundred. So it would be $2,200 about? Adding $100 for software cost.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: $22,000.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Two hundred twenty thousand.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Two hundred and twenty, yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, he can replace 22 computers. Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You know that $100, if that's part of the licensing and whatnot, I thought
we booked it under the department and that's separate, right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, that's separate. The software and the license is separate.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Separate?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So this is just computer...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So $1,000 for the computer.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: 200,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay. Okay, okay. So we'll...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So this is only for the computer?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Computer, yeah. Hardware.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Just the computer then, $200,000. Okay. I'm going to make the motion to
reduce this, and you can amend my motion if you want to.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Chair's recommendation is to remove $460,000 on the desktop
computer replacement program.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Moved by Member Victorino, second by Member Baisa. Any
discussion? Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I move to amend that number to say 300,000.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Moved by Member Couch, seconded by Member White. What
happened to 200?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Huh?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: What happened to 200?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I said down 200.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, you said 300.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Three hundred.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You said 300, bruddah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, no, I'm sorry, in my discussion before.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: What?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Down, I was going to lower it by 200-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --which makes it 260-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, but . . .(inaudible). . .
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --but I'm fine with 300.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Two hundred . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So that, my number was 300 in the motion.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Chair, how about if we, how about if we go 50 percent of what they
requested which would be, we would take out 330,000, it would leave them 330,000?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, 230.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: 230.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: 230.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: They asked for 660, right?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, 460.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No, 460.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No, no, no. They asked for 660. What I'm suggesting is we...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Total amount is 660. They're taking 460 from it, leaving 300,000 left.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: We give them, we give them half which would change your 460 to 330.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Hmm.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And that, and I'm sorry, Mr. Chair, that, that's why I said 300 to make
it easy, but-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll just do it 300.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Three hundred. Yeah, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: 300?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Any more discussion? All in favor of the amendment, please say
"aye". Okay, Chair votes "no".
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Two "noes". Okay. Motion is carried. Seven "ayes"; two "noes",
Mr. Hokama [sic] and myself. All in favor of the motion, as amended...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Just for correction -CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --it was myself, not Mr. Hokama.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sony. I was hoping to gain one more.
ALL: . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Sorry, yeah.
ALL: . . . (laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Hokama never move, but that's all right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. And the "no"--I stand corrected--is Chairman and Mr. Victorino.
Motion carried, seven "ayes", two "noes".
VOTE:

AYES: Vice-Chair Hokama and Councilmembers Baisa, Carroll, Cochran,
Couch, Mateo, and White.
NOES: Chair Pontanilla and Councilmember Victorino.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.
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MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE amendment to main motion.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Can you clarify what we just voted on, Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: It was three, a $300,000 reduction or $300,000 funding?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Change the 460 to 300.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Change the 460 to 300-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So reduction of 360.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --so 160,000 reduction.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: So we're leaving the 360,000 to spend?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So now we have the motion as amended.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Now the main motion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --back to the main motion, as amended. All in favor of the motion, please say
"aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any opposed?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Chair votes "no".
So there's seven "ayes"; two "noes",
Member Victorino [sic] and the Chair. Motion carried.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: It was-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, it was Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: It was Hokama.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'm sorry, Mr. Hokama.
ALL: . . . (laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You guys messing me up here. Okay. Seven "ayes"; two "noes"--I stand
corrected--Mr. Hokama and the Chair. Motion is carried.
VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Carroll, Cochran, Couch, Mateo, Victorino, and
White.
NOES: Chair Pontanilla and Vice-Chair Hokama.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE main motion as amended.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Professional Services. The Chair is, the Chair is recommending the
reduction for Personal [sic] Services for the Department by $300,000. I need a motion.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by Member Victorino, seconded by Member Baisa. Members, any
more discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Couch.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah. Again, this is a, an issue that they're trying to integrate a bunch
of really difficult systems, and then now one system that they're, I guess, going to have to all fit
together with the one system that we're going to get regardless. So it, it needs to be really
looked at as to, as how we can get things together. And without a, without a...an assessment
and, and a really big study, it's just going to be, you know, patchwork as usual, in my opinion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I, I'm going to ask the Committee and yourself, Chairman, to reconsider
this. I am willing to reduce by 200 or 100 thousand. I think 300 is too much, personally, from
my, my discussions. So, I would prefer to drop it down to 200,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Because again, Chairman, you know, as I stated earlier, my disappointment
is it took us this long to finally come up with this smart plan that we figured out over ten years
ago we needed to do, once we started implementing KIVA and finding out that only KIVA can
provide information to certain divisions of departments. You know, the Council wanted to have
KIVA reports. We were told we are not able to receive those types of reports 'cause of our
system, integration issues. So, you know, it's about time if we get people who we pay good
money for to, you know, get their show in order, their ducks in place, and I can support a request
to do this assessment. Thank you, Chairman.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Second the motion if that's a motion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And just to clarify the motion, it's to change that number from 300 to
200, is that what you're saying?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes. That's what he said.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: So reduction of 100 to the Chair's recommendation.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's all right.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, I need one...
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I think I heard it to be -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The opposite.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --Mr. Hokama was saying that he would, wanted to provide 200,000 in
funding. So it'd be 100,000 reduction from the, from the budgeted amount. Correct?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That's correct. That was my, that's my position.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: So that's, that's what I seconded.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama made the motion, second by Mr. White to now make it $100,000
reduction.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You guys all agreed last night 150, but...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: On what?
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, we didn't.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I think we talked about it, Chair. I don't know if we ever...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We never agreed.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You know, I know we talked about it and I, I would agree that they said, the
conversation was I would agree with 150. So just to remind you guys.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. And, and, Chairman, if you would allow me. But part of this is I
think as we talked earlier this afternoon, that this needs to be a Countywide assessment, because,
you know, I still believe that from the Council or the Legislative Branch side, we need to also
assist the Clerk's -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --Office of the Clerk, to have them fulfill their responsibilities and
especially with the up-to-date information needed regarding home...residence site to the voter
registration requirements. And so working with Mr. Teruya and the County Clerk, I think we can
ensure our voters that the information and decisions made on where they vote, what precinct
ability, regarding tax liens and other things that may impact a resident is, is pertinent in this
assessment also.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So, so, Chair -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --would you please restate the motion we're voting on so that we're all
sure here?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The motion is to reduce from the Chair's proposal $200,000. So now the
requirement...you know, we will put in another $100,000 in their proposal.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So all they're gonna have to do this Professional Services is $100,000 if
we approve this?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, no, no. Whatever... see the Chair had reduced it somewhat. Okay. What
Mr. Hokama is saying, out of the four or three hundred thousand, that we keep
100,000...200,000 for the Department.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So that's the motion, is that we're going to approve 200,000?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: The number in the red will be 100,000.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The number in red will be 100.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right. So we're only reducing it by 100, so we'll have 200?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. I want to be clear because this, I think this is really important.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, no, it is and then the Chair is going to restate the amendment.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, I'd like to amend-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Oh, god.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --Mr. Hokama's motion to make it 150, as you mentioned. If you heard
that last night, I think, I think everybody can live with that. So...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: It's in the amendment, Chairman, on the motion to amend.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So the number in red should be 150 is what the motion is.
NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. KANESHINA: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Whoever, oh, you, you're going to amend your motion, Mr. Hokama-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: --to 150?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I'm okay with that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The seconded? Okay. So the motion is to reduce the Chair's recommendation
by $150,000. Okay. All in favor of the motion, please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any opposed? Chair votes "no". There's eight "ayes"; one "no", the Chair of
the Committee.
VOTE:

AYES: Vice-Chair Hokama and Councilmembers Baisa, Carroll, Cochran,
Couch, Mateo, Victorino, and White.
NOES: Chair Pontanilla.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE amendment to main motion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Back to the main motion, as amended. All in favor of the motion, please say
"aye"
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any opposed? Chair votes "no". Eight "ayes", one "no". Motion is carried.
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VOTE:

AYES: Vice-Chair Hokama and Councilmembers Baisa, Carroll, Cochran,
Couch, Mateo, Victorino, and White.
NOES: Chair Pontanilla.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE main motion as amended.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any more?
MR. KANESHINA: I think that was it for the Department of Management. Can we, can we have a
short recess, Chair, so we can... Staff could...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure. The Chair's going to call a short recess, maybe ten minutes...3:15 we'll
reconvene. Okay? . . .(gavel). . .
RECESS:

3:07 p.m.

RECONVENE:

3:30 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Members, before the Chair start, we're going to take our dinner break at 5:30 and
then return at 7:00.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'm going to release Mr. Teruya at this time, but he's going to be back
tomorrow morning to answer some of the real property tax questions and tomorrow we'll take up
Real Property Tax as an agenda'd item for tomorrow. So anybody get questions for Mr. Teruya
right now, one fast one? Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I don't have a question for Mr. Teruya, Chair, but can you kind of tell us
what the plan is so that not, not so much for us, but for like the directors that are sitting here
waiting. Are we gonna be discussing the grants at all or should they go home?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes. The Chair is going to go over the grants right now --
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --and then I know some of you have certain things that you guys want to add.
But I'm just going to warn all of you, right now with all the pullbacks that we have put into the
Budget, you know, we're like half a million dollars over what was presented to you, half a
million. So, you know, we raise real property tax or we'll see. And then the adds that the
Members will have, may have, then you look for your money. You know, if you want to raise
real, you say real property tax and we all agree, then, you know, that's the route that we'll go.
But at this time, the Chair is gonna go with the nonprofits at this time, and then soon after that
we'll go with, you know, some of the Members do have some requests, I understand.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. So we'll recess at 5:30 and then reconvene at 7:00.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We're on Page 9.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Maui Economic Opportunity for Head Start Afterschool Program. The
Chair's recommendation is to reduce the request by $6,599 which would bring 'em to Fiscal
Year 2012 dollar amount for this particular grant here. Chair...I know we don't have consensus.
Chair is going to make his motion in regards to...the Chair's recommendation is to reduce by
$6,599.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by Mr. Victorino, second by Mr. Mateo. Members, discussion?
Seeing none, all in favor of the motion, please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, motion is carried.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Opposed?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What about noes?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, I'm sorry.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, you never call the noes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Nice try, though.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Nice try, boss.
ALL: . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'm impressed.
ALL: . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Whoa, you almost slipped that by everybody.
ALL: . . . (laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Any opposed?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, we'll do a roll call. Member Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And the Chair votes "aye". So motion carries. Five "ayes"; four "noes",
Member Baisa, Cochran [sic], Couch, Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Wait.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Wait.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No, no.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Huh?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Why are you lumping me in with them?
ALL: . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Mistake.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: What's that? Oh, I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member...people voting "no": Member Baisa, Member Couch,
Member Victorino, and Member White.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And, and-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Motion carried.
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VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Carroll,
Cochran, and Mateo.
NOES: Councilmembers Baisa, Couch, Victorino, and White.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We lost it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next one is Maui Economic Opportunity for Infant/Toddler Care Program.
The Chair's recommendation is to reduce the program by $2,378.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Second by Chairman Mateo. Any discussion, Members? All in favor of the
motion, please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any noes?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Going do one roll call again. Member Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Cochran.
-94-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 2, 2012

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member, Chairman Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And the Chair votes "aye". Motion dies. Four "ayes" and five "noes";
Member Carroll, Member Baisa, Member Couch, Member Victorino, and Member White.

VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Cochran
and Mateo.
NOES: Councilmembers Baisa, Carroll, Couch, Victorino, and White.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION FAILED.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'd like to ask a question -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --on the item before, on the Head Start Summer Programs. While we
agreed to do the proviso that says Molokai Summer Programs, I don't remember us ever voting
on the 4,536.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The what? On the what one?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's gone?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. We took it out and then...so we actually added it back.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So it's totally gone?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay?
NOTE: Silence.

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. All right, just want to make sure.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Chair would like to entertain a motion--coming back to the last
one--Maui Economic Opportunity for Infant/Toddler Care Program. Chair's recommendation
was not to, was to decrease.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Wait.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What did we-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, motion died, yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, okay. Next one is Nisei Veterans Memorial Center Preschool, dba
Kansha Preschool. Chair is entertaining a motion to reduce the appropriation by 20,000.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Huh?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'm sorry...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, we'll come back to--short recess on this one here-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --because I think there was some issue-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --on the total amount.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: The amount.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair, you want motion?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, not yet.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Not yet.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Short recess. . . . (gavel).. .
RECESS:

3:38 p.m.

RECONVENE:

3:42 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Members, we're at Nisen, Nisei Veterans Memorial Center Preschool, Kansha
Preschool. Chair's recommendation is to reduce the funding of $13,150. Their flat budget
would have been 20,700, but the Chair is also including a $10,000 reduction. Members, just for
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your information, we got some information back from Kansha School and I'd like Mr. Baz to
provide-MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --the Members some information.
MR. BAZ: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Chair. The questions came up in the Committee regarding Kansha
Preschool, do they have a sliding scale on subsidies for children of lower income families? The
answer is "no". Would they be willing to have a sliding scale? The answer was there is not a
definitive answer at this time, as the Board needs to meet on the issue. The Director understands
what's being asked and is trying to coordinate a meeting to have this discussion; however, this
may not occur prior to completion of the County Council deliberations. And the final question
was how many kids get other types of support, like Child Care Connection, Open Doors, et
cetera? The answer is "one".
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. So Chair's recommendation at this time is to reduce the funding by
$13,850.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by Member Victorino, seconded by Member Couch. Members, any
discussion? Seeing none, all in favor of the motion, please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any opposed? Motion carried.
VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Baisa,
Carroll, Cochran, Couch, Mateo, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. The next one is on Page 10, Maui Food Bank, dba Maui Community
Food Bank. The Chair's recommendation at this time is to reduce the Maui Food Bank
appropriation by $45,000.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved, Mr. Chair.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by Member Victorino, seconded by Member Hokama. Members, any
discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I would like to amend that and, you know, knowing that these are
austere times, and I understand your thing, I would like to amend that to add back 25,000,
making the total of 325 instead of 345. The 325, adding 25,000 back.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's, that's my motion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Point of order.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So...
MR. KANESHINA: Mr. Chair, the maker of the motion was Member Victorino.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, I'm sorry.
MR. KANESHINA: Yeah. Perhaps it would be cleaner if he-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Have somebody else make the amendment.
MR. KANESHINA: Or, or he could withdraw his main motion and-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
MR. KANESHINA: --move to just...
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I can amend the motion. I can amend the motion I made. 'Cause
he made the motion, I'm amending the motion. I'm not voting on it, I'm only amending it.
MR. KANESHINA: Mr. Chair, I-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
MR. KANESHINA: I guess the point is as long as the Chair, the presiding officer clarifies what the
intent of the motion is.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine.
MR. KANESHINA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Corporation Counsel, the intent of the motion is to reduce the appropriation by
$45,000 for Maui Food Bank, Inc., Maui Community Food Bank. It was moved by Member
Victorino, seconded by Member Hokama. The Chair asked for a discussion and Member
Victorino, who made the motion, is now going to amend the motion?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And I seconded it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And then Member Baisa is gonna second it. Corporation Counsel, please
clarify?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Point of order, Chairman, please?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Not too often I come to the rescue of Corporation Counsel.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (laughter).. .
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: But this is a procedural question, Chairman.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Correct.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: This is not a question of legality-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . .(inaudible). . .
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --that Mr. Ueoka should be responding to. This is a decision of yours,
Chairman, and we have procedures that we have agreed upon whereby if a Member disagrees
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with you, they have parliamentary procedures that they may, if they are aware of, may utilize
regarding your ruling. So at this point, Chairman, it's all up to you.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. I would rather have somebody else make that motion.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I'll make the motion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure. Member Baisa, moved.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Now can I second it or no?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You can.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Seconded by Member Victorino that the appropriation be reduced by
only -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Twenty thousand.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --$20,000?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Twenty thousand -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --to, to 25,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So now you're looking at 25, right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Any more discussion? All in favor of the motion, please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any opposed?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Roll call.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Roll call. Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And Chair votes "no". So motion carried. Five "ayes"; four "noes", Members
Carroll, Member Hokama, Member White, and the Chair.
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VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Cochran, Couch, Mateo, and Victorino.
NOES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Carroll and
White.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE amendment to main motion.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, just to clarify -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --that, that the number in red will be 20,000 and the number on the
right-hand column would be 325,000?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Is that correct?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, the next one is The Maui Farm-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, that's only-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Point of order. There's the main
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Main motion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Back to the main motion, as amended. All in favor--any discussion?
All in favor of the motion, please say "aye".
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any opposed?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Motion is carried. Seven "ayes"; two "noes", Member Hokama and Chair.
Motion carried.

VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Carroll, Cochran, Couch, Mateo, Victorino, and
White.
NOES: Chair Pontanilla and Vice-Chair Hokama.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE main motion as amended.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next one up is The Maui Farms, Inc. Chair's recommendation is to reduce by
$30,360. I need a motion.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So moved.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Second by Member Mateo. Any discussion, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair. Again, you know-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. I would like to add back 15,000 so to make it 219,400 as
the amended amount, reinstating for 15,000. That's my motion.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.
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NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Moved by Member Victorino, seconded by Member Baisa.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, just to clarify. You're looking at reducing it by $15,360 to be a total of
$217,400?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes, that's correct.
MR. BAZ: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's correct, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Any more discussion, Members? All in favor of the motion, please say
"aye"
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any opposed?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Roll call, please.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Roll call. Member Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And Chair votes "no". Motion carried. Six "ayes"; three "noes".

VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Carroll, Cochran, Couch, Victorino, and White.
NOES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmember Mateo.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE amendment to main motion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Back to the main motion, as amended. Any more discussion, Members? All
in favor of the motion, please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any opposed?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Roll call. Member Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And Chair votes "no". Motion carried. Six "ayes"; three "noes". So we'll
make the adjustment.

VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Carroll, Cochran, Couch, Victorino, and White.
NOES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmember Mateo.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE main motion as amended.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next one up is Mental Health Association in Hawaii. Chair vote, Chair is
recommending $6,340 decrease. Chair is looking for a motion.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by Member Hokama, seconded by Member Victorino. Any
discussion, Members? Seeing none, all in favor of the motion, please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Motion carried. Nine "ayes", zero "noes".

VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Baisa,
Carroll, Cochran, Couch, Mateo, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
MR. BAZ: I'm sorry, just to clarification. You're gonna leave the reduction of $6,240-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
MR. BAZ: --leaving a balance of 2,000, 23,760?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
MR. BAZ: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Next one up, Special Olympics, Inc. - Molokai.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Excuse me. I thought we had consensus on this one. I have it
checked off that we agreed that 10,000 would go to Molokai, and I thought we had done that
yesterday.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We did?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I apologize if I am wrong. Staff?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Uh-uh.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I don't-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'm fairly certain we did that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I thought we did.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I don't have that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes, we did.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I know what it is. Okay. We're going to add one proviso that $10,000 go to
Molokai.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I thought that...oh, okay, I thought that was done yesterday.
Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. So, I needed a motion to do that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Second.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, you-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Wait, wait, wait.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You need on the main motion, right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Chair's recommendation is to delete $10,000 from the appropriation.
That's my motion [sic] right now.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So moved.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by Member Hokama. Looking for a second.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Second by Member Cochran. Any discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Amendment.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I would like to insert an add, take, reinsert the $10,000 with the
proviso that, that 10,000 go for Molokai Special Olympics.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Second by Member Baisa. The amendment is to take the $10,000 as
appropriated by the...as the reduction and put it back with a proviso that the $10,000 go to the
Molokai Special Olympics. All in favor of the...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Point of order.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: First the amendment.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: The amendment, you know, I, I would rule it out of order because all they
have to do is vote "no" on the main motion, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And then you can deal with the proviso after the vote.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: The proviso.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I agree.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: But the main motion is, is very straightforward and if you don't agree with
it, please vote "no" and if you do, vote "yes".
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Everybody got it?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yep.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So there's no amendment, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So the motion is to -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Reduce by $10,000.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --reduce by 10,000?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay? All in favor of the motion, please say "aye".
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any opposed?
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: No.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We're gonna put it back, right?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Roll call.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Oh, well-CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(laughter). . . Member Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo.
ALL: . . . (laughter).. .
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No.
ALL: . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: I don't know . . . (laughter).. .
ALL: . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Wait, Chairman, I'm, I'm really sorry . . . (laughter). . . Somewhere
along the line-ALL: . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Can we take a short recess?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --I had my senior moments.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. The Chair votes "no". So there's-COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (inaudible).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --six [sic] "ayes", three [sic] "noes". Motion carried [sic]. Member Cochran-MR. KANESHINA: Mister...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --voting "no" [sic]: Member Cochran, Member Hokama, and myself.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, the motion fails.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: The motion failed.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The motion failed.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, yeah. Yeah. The motion fails. Okay.
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VOTE:

AYES: Vice-Chair Hokama and Councilmember Cochran.
NOES: Chair Pontanilla, and Councilmembers Baisa, Carroll, Couch, Mateo,
Victorino, and White.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION FAILED.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Coming back. Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, now I'm going to make a motion to...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Proviso.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no, no. I going make a motion to--now, are we back to 35,
right?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Now, no need make I just going have a proviso put in -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --that the 10,000 goes to Molokai.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. There's a motion to -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --add a proviso of $10,000 to the Molokai Olympics.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Been moved by Member Victorino, second by Member Baisa. Any
more discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, all in favor, say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any oppose? Okay, Chair votes "no". Eight "ayes", one "no".

VOTE:

AYES: Vice-Chair Hokama and Councilmembers Baisa, Carroll, Cochran,
Couch, Mateo, Victorino, and White.
NOES: Chair Pontanilla.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next one, Women Helping Women. Chair, Chair's recommendation is to
reduce funding by $25,650. I need a motion.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So moved.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by Member Hokama. Any second? . . . (laughter). . . Seeing none, the
motion die--did you second, Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no, no, no, I not going second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, seeing none, motion dies [sic]. So Chair's. . .just recommendation is
still that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah. Mr. Chair, what's the procedure from here?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, you should have taken the vote.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So no, your recommendation was to do it. So there was no motion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. My recommendation was to reduce.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So, Mr. Chair, I move to -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Wait, wait.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Wait, wait, wait.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Hang on.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Wait.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Sorry, I can make a motion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: If I don't recognize you to make a motion, I can do that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. And we can move on.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Do you, would you prefer us vote on it and then turn it down and
then we can move cleaner that way? Is that your preference?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Let me take a short recess -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --because there were no motion.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: There's no second.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No second.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No second.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Lack of second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Short recess. . . . (gavel).. .

RECESS:

3:55 p.m.

RECONVENE:

3:56 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA:
. . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Chair is going to move on and we'll come back to that. Okay? J. Walter Cameron
Center. The Chair's recommendation is to reduce by $45,000.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by Member Hokama, seconded by Member Couch. Any discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Make the amendment?
NOTE: Silence.

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, okay. Mr. Chair, I...I move, I'd like to amend. Well, you
know what, we just vote it down and then we can do from there. Okay, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: What?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Maybe.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Wait, wait. There is a motion and a second at this time.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So can I amend this?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chair is looking-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Whose motion was it?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Chair is looking for discussion right now.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair, I move to amend this to add back the 45,000 to make
the total 90,000.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Second.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Again-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Second...moved by Member Victorino, second by Member White.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Point of order, again. That's the same thing as-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: What?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That doesn't make sense. It's the exact opposite of the motion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So technically you should -CHAIR PONTANILLA: You know what, I going come back to this.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But there's a motion on the floor, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I still going come back to this.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Lahaina Tutoring Project, Chair's recommendation is to -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Wait.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You missing the -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Drug Free Lanai?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --the Coalition for a Drug Free Lanai.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, please.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, even before that...I want to be sure that we don't forget the
proviso on the Boy Scouts. We haven't seen it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, yeah. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It says over here provided-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It's on there.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: What do you mean? The proviso that we talked about pending the
release, the State, release funds from State... somebody was going to draft that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, no, we can do that right now. Okay. Maui County Council -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I would just recommend that you advise the Committee that you tabling the
J. Walter Cameron motion at this time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'll table the J. Walter Cameron Center at this time, along with Women
Helping Women.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: But the main one is just the Cameron Center, Chairman-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, yeah. I take it back.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --since there is motion, yeah, on the floor. So by tabling it, you allow the
body to move forward and present additional motions.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll table that. Okay, next one is the Maui County Council of the
Boy Scouts of America, Limited. Chair is recommending a proviso: upon the release of State
funding on this one.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We got consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus on that.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: But you just wanted the wording?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I just want the words.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I just want to go, vote on this one.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Because I, I don't show consensus on mine, okay.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (inaudible).. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved, Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Moved by Member Victorino, seconded by Member Couch. Any more
discussion? All in favor, say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The motion is carried. Nine "ayes", zero "noes". So we'll add the proviso.

VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Baisa,
Carroll, Cochran, Couch, Mateo, Victorino, and White.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.
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MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Coalition for Drug Free Lanai. Chair's recommendation is to reduce
by $5,400. I need a motion.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by Member Victorino, second by Member Baisa. Any discussion?
All in favor of the motion, please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any opposed?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Roll call. Member Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member, Chairman Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Motion carried. Six "ayes"; three "noes". Okay.
VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Baisa,
Carroll, Mateo, and Victorino.
NOES: Councilmembers Cochran, Couch, and White.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next page, Page 12. Lahaina Tutoring Program. Chair's recommendation is
to reduce by $1,200. I need a motion.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I need a second.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by Mr. Victorino, second by Mr. Couch. Any discussion? Seeing
none...Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, this morning I got a very long voice mail from Ms. Endsley, and
she was explaining to me how this all works. It appears to me that they spend quite a bit of this
money on that Roberts contract, and I don't know if they'll be able to do what they're doing if
we cut this. Does anybody else have any other information?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: On--none other than-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Speaking to Ms. Endsley last night, 6,500, I believe, is used for
transportation. So the transportation part is covered, she has some really huge donors, supporters
of this program that sort of make up the rest of the balance in their budget. So that as far as I
know, this would be part of supplies and what have you. So it just take a little bit more doing on
their donation behalf to make up the $1,200. But as for transportation, I believe the 8,000 is
going to support the transportation portion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's okay, Chair. I just wanted to be sure that we had that covered
`cause without transportation the program is gone. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I understand, and I understand that MEO is going to be working with that
organization.
MR. BAZ: Mister-CHAIR PONTANILLA: No?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No-MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, I do have some additional information if you'd like.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MR. BAZ: Okay. Thank you. Yeah. No, Maui Economic Opportunity did discuss with the Endsley's
the possibility of doing that transportation services, and the amount of kids and the time that they
need the kids transported does not fit into the capacity that MEO has at this time. They would
basically need about four additional school buses, or two additional school buses to handle that at
a specific time. So...
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Any more discussion, Members? All in favor of the
motion, please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any opposed?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Roll call. Member Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And Chair votes "aye". Motion dies with three "ayes" and six "noes".
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VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmember Mateo.
NOES: Councilmember Baisa, Carroll, Cochran, Couch, Victorino, and White
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION FAILED.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Member Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just a question on procedure. So does that mean that the...you, we
strike the 1,200 and it becomes 9 or do we have to make a motion to do that?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Um. . .I'll come back to that. Maui Economic Opportunity for Youth
Services. Chair's recommendation is to reduce by $5,280. Chair needs a motion.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So move.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Second by Member Couch. Any discussion? All in favor, say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any opposed?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Roll call. Member Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Cochran.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And Chair votes "aye". Motion carries. Five "ayes"; four "noes"...
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Chair. Chair, before we move this, move beyond this area, I'd like to
move to add $245,000 for planning, design, and project management for Paukukalo Boys &
Girls Club and the...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. White, let-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: After.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --let me finish this motion.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Oh, I'm sorry. I thought we were done with that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Five "ayes" and four "noes". Motion carried.
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VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Carroll,
Cochran, and Mateo.
NOES: Councilmembers Baisa, Couch, Victorino, and White.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . . (inaudible). . . Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. White, on yours we're going to pick up the addition after we go through
this whole thing here.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Oh, okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I know some of the Members have, well, want to add, yeah -COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --and, you know, just be prepared to remove. Okay, we're down to the next
page, Page 14. If there is...Mr. Carroll, we'll come back to East Maui Cultural/Economic
Development--no, we'll take it up now because we removed the other side.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I thought we had consensus on that, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Not on this one.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Chair's recommendation for East Maui Cultural/Economic Development
is $35,000.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by Member Victorino, seconded by Member Couch [sic].
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Hokama seconded.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, I'd like to make an amendment to that motion, please?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'd like to add $15,000 to that to make a total of $50,000.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Moved by Member Couch, seconded by Member Carroll. Any more
discussion? All in favor or the motion, please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Motion is carried. Eight "ayes"; one "no", the Chairman.

VOTE:

AYES: Vice-Chair Hokama and Councilmembers Baisa, Carroll, Cochran,
Couch, Mateo, Victorino, and White.
NOES: Chair Pontanilla.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE amendment to main motion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Back to the main motion, as amended. All in favor, say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any opposed? The Chair votes "no". Eight "ayes" and one "no".

VOTE:

AYES: Vice-Chair Hokama and Councilmembers Baisa, Carroll, Cochran,
Couch, Mateo, Victorino, and White.
NOES: Chair Pontanilla.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE main motion as amended.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Next one down is Ka Ipu Kukui Fellows Leadership. Chair's
recommendation is no funding. I need a motion.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by Member Hokama, seconded by Member Victorino. Any
discussion? Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I'd like to amend that to add 15,000.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by Member Baisa, seconded by Member Victorino to reinstate
$15,000. Any more discussion, Members? All in favor of the motion, please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any opposed?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Roll call. Member Carroll.
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COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And Chair votes "no". Motion carries. Five "ayes", four...one, two, three,
four "noes".

VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Carroll, Couch, Victorino, and White.
NOES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Cochran
and Mateo.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.
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MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE amendment to main motion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So the new amount, as amended--back to the main motion, as amended. All in
favor of the motion, please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: All opposed?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Roll call. Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Aye.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And the Chair votes "no". Motion is carried. So we add $15,000 to the total.

VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Carroll, Couch, Victorino, and White.
NOES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Cochran
and Mateo.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE main motion as amended.
MR. BAZ: Thank you. Mr. Chair, just to clarify...the, the number in red there, the negative would be
$10,000?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct.
MR. BAZ: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike, Inc. The Chair's recommendation is to reduce by
$8,000. I need a motion.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Move.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Second.
COUNCILMEMBER

: Second.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by Member Hokama, second by Member Mateo. Any discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Yes, Chair.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Yes, Chair. At the, calling and working with the community and
doing some checking up since we've begun, there are so many places that they are servicing
now--mostly with our elder population. And the amount of students that, at-risk students that are
in the program, they really do need the money. I was all for flat budget as much as possible, but
not only is just because this is in Hana, it is so successful and the need is great. So, I will not be
supporting the motion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any more discussion, Members? All in favor...Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I would be more open to the proposed increase if I knew how
much they were spending on building permits, 'cause they're doing a lot of construction, but
they never talk about permits or how much they expend from this program to take care permits,
since they're doing a lot of construction and renovation to homes and other facilities. So, for me,
I can live with the lower number at this time until they can verify how much they spend or need
to take care of their permit requirements. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Would you know, Mr. Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: I have, because that question did come up, I believe, from
Mr. Hokama before. And I did go over there and inquire and every project that they have
undertaken for the seniors or even on the school grounds where they really don't need a permit,
everyplace they have gone, they have acquired the proper permits because it is part of the
educational program. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any more discussion? Okay. All in favor of the motion, please
say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any opposed?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay . . . (laughter). . . Well, I'll take a roll call. Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And the Chair votes "aye". The Chair will come back to this, double check on
the permits.

VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmember Mateo.
NOES: Councilmembers Baisa, Carroll, Cochran, Couch, Victorino, and White
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION FAILED.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair. What was, what was the result of the vote?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: The motion failed.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The motion fails, three "ayes"; six "noes".
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll come back to that. Next one down is the Maui Economic
Development Board, Inc. Chair's recommendation is to reduce by $80,000. I need a motion.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by Member Hokama, seconded by Member Couch. Any discussion?
All in favor of the motion, please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any opposed?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Roll call. Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member White.
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Chair votes "aye". So the motion pass. Five "ayes"; four "noes".

VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Carroll,
Cochran, and Mateo.
NOES: Councilmembers Baisa, Couch, Victorino, and White.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Staff, did we take a consensus on Small Business Promotion?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We did, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Next one, on Page 15, Sister City Program. Chair's recommendation is
to reduce that program by $42,000. I need a motion.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So moved.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay-COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Moved by Member Hokama. Second?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Second.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Second by Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, what was the number you said? Did you say 42 or 22?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Forty-two.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Forty-two.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Sounded like 22.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any discussion? No discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: . . .(inaudible). . . amendment?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Go ahead.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, not me.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'd like to amend that amount, Chair, and instead of taking out 42,000,
I'm willing to take out maybe 20,000.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Moved by Member Baisa, second by Member Couch. Any more
discussion, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah. Just a comment, Mr. Chairman, if I may.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah. This is...we did see a preliminary, preliminary plan that was
actually fairly detailed. So I'm convinced that they're working on something and, and I think it's
a good program and I think it should, more than 8,000 is necessary in there. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Again, let me remind you . . .(laughter). . . A, B, C
Accounts, okay?

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 2, 2012

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any more discussion? All in favor of the amendment, please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any opposed?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And Chair votes "no". Motion dies.
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VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Carroll, Couch, and White.
NOES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Cochran,
Mateo, and Victorino.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION FAILED.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Back to the main motion. All in favor of the main motion, please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any opposed?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Roll call. Member Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Clarification. The last one the amendment had -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Died.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Died.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Died.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Died.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Couch.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And Chair votes "aye". So motion dies, motion is carried.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Huh?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion carried.

VOTE:

AYES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Cochran,
Mateo, and Victorino.
NOES: Councilmembers Baisa, Carroll, Couch, and White.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE main motion.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: . . .(inaudible). . .
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mike White.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Victorino?
VICE CHAIR HOKAMA: . . .(inaudible). . .
-

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chair is going to take a ten minute recess. We'll reconvene at 4:25.
. . .(gavel). . .

RECESS:

4:17 p.m.

RECONVENE:

4:43 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA:
. . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Okay. Members, we'll go Page 11. Okay, we're back to Women--well--Helping
Women.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Bob, the next one, the next one, page 11. Page 11, the next one we take
up . . . (inaudible).. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, the Chair had made a recommendation to reduce Women Helping
Women by $25,650.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We took action. Was there an amendment? There was an amend-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, that was the one that had no motion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, yeah, no motion. Okay. Chair is open to a recommendation on this
particular motion here, on this particular item.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I move that we insert 14,000 to make it a total of 185,000. So in
other words, a reduction of 11,650--in the spirit of cooperation.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That is, that is my motion, Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: What was the reduction?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The reduction of $11,650.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Moved by Member Victorino, seconded by Member Couch. Any
discussion? All in favor of the motion, please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any opposed? The Chair votes "no". Motion carried. Eight "ayes", one
"no".

VOTE:

AYES: Vice-Chair Hokama and Councilmembers Baisa, Carroll, Cochran,
Couch, Mateo, Victorino, and White.
NOES: Chair Pontanilla.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Next one is...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: The, the next one that we had an issue with was the J. Walter Cameron
Center...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, no, I understand. Yeah, I know that.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, that's tabled. That's right, that's tabled.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, that was tabled.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. On page...page, page, Page 12.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Page 12, okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Lahaina Tutoring Project. Again, the Chair's recommendation was to remove
$1,200. And the Chair's recommendation is still that, but motion failed.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Are you looking for a motion to do something else with that since your
motion failed and there's no, it's kind of in limbo?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: All right. So, Mr. Chair, I move to put the Council's amount at 9,200
for the Lahaina Tutoring Project.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It's been moved by Member Victorino, uh, Member Couch.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, Couch, Couch.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Actually, the Chair-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Please don't insult me.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seconded by Member Cochran. Any more discussion? All in favor of the
motion, please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any opposed?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Motion carries. Six "ayes"; three "noes", Member Hokama, Mateo,
and myself.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Roll call, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure. Roll call. Member Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member, Chairman Mateo.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And Chair votes "no". So motion passes. Six "ayes", three "noes".
VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Carroll, Cochran, Couch, Victorino, and White.
NOES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmember Mateo.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: There's one that the Chair is following up on and, and that's Ma Ka Hana Ka
Ike in regards to the permits issue. And I just want to make sure...I don't know if you called
Mr. Rutiz, Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Yes. Chair, during the break I went and called and talked to
Mr. Rutiz. Buildings that were unpermitted were on school grounds and were run through the
State, and they do not need to get permits from the County. So that was all legally done under
the State, the buildings that were built over there. They had one problem six years ago where
they wanted them to remove something and then they came back six years later, they did work
that out with the Planning Department. All of the other ones, small things that were unpermitted
were all under 200 square feet, and they were checked on and said that they didn't need permits
for those--putting a shower stall and things like that outside. So, I'm satisfied that they are
meeting their requirements under the law.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, Mr. Chair, we didn't, we didn't take any action on that one,
did we?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, we did.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, we did.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We voted it down?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: . . .(inaudible). . . for that.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Oh, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We voted down, right?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, Mr. Chair-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So it stays.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Huh?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So it stays.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It stays?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It stays, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: $80,000.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Baz.
MR. BAZ: Thank you. Just to clarify. On previous ones where the amount was missed...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. I know, I know.
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MR. BAZ: Oh, okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, I know.
MR. BAZ: Sony. Thank you. Okay, just checking.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We got one more.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The tabled one, J. Walter Cameron Center. Okay. Chair's recommendation
was to remove $45,000 for J. Walter Cameron Center in regards to, I guess, for their tenants'
reduction in their assessment. Chair's recommendation at that time was to remove $45,000.
Motion failed. So the, the appropriation for J. Walter Cameron Center now is, stands at $90,000.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I thought it was tabled.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --short, short recess, please.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure. Recess. . . .(gavel). . .
RECESS:

4:49 p.m.

RECONVENE:

4:50 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting...thank you,
Mr. Couch. There were two motions in, in regards to this item here which canceled out-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Each other.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --the opposing, you know-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --to the Chair. So Chair is entertaining a new motion.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, I move that we make the amount in the Council column for
J. Walter Cameron Center $90,000.
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COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Moved by Member Couch, second by Member Carroll. Any more
discussion? All in favor of the motion, please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any opposed?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No? Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER

: Roll call.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Roll call. Member Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And Chair votes "no". Motion dies. So Chair's recommendation sits at
$45,000.

VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Carroll, Couch, and White.
NOES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Cochran,
Mateo, and Victorino.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION FAILED.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Wait. Mr.--what did I just do?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You just...
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You just blew it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, wait. Chair, Chair-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Wait a minute, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: You can't reconsider.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, yeah, he can't reconsider.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Law. . .isn't there some kind of law here?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Definitely was a mistake on my part, but I want reconsideration.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I cannot, yeah?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: He's the, he's on the winning vote.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: He's on the winning side.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes. Mr. Chair, I'd like to move for reconsideration.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chair, would -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'm sorry.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --I, I'm going to take a short recess.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You need one guy from the affirmative side to say he second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: From which now?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Affirmative.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO The winning side?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The winning side.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: The winning side is you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: The motion lost.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, we can reconsider.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I think, I, I meant-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Recess. . . .(gavel). . .

RECESS:

4:52 p.m.

RECONVENE:

4:57 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA:
. . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Members, we're still with Cameron Center, and the Chair had announced that I am
a member of the Facility and Maintenance Committee. And I just wanted all of you to know that
I am a committee member.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'd like to move for reconsideration.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Moved by Mr. Victorino, seconded by Mr. Couch for reconsideration.
State your case.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair, I was in error the way I voted and I apologize for that,
and that's why I'm calling for a reconsideration.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more discussion? Okay. All in favor of the
motion, please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any opposed?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No. Member Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And Chair votes "no". Okay. Motion is carried. Five "ayes"; four "noes",
Ms. Cochran, Mr. Hokama, Mr. Mateo, and the Chair. Okay, motion carried.
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VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Carroll, Couch, Victorino, and White.
NOES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Cochran
and Mateo.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE reconsideration.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So now we have to make, the main motion is up on the table again?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I don't want to recognize it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --point of order.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I think that the body has some say. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair, I move to reinstate the 45,000 to make the total of
90,000 for the J. Walter Cameron Center.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Second.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Moved by Member Victorino, seconded by Mr. Couch to
reinstate 45,000 to Cameron Center. Any more discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman Mateo.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. And my discussion is rather short. I wish we
spent the same kind of energy and focus and what we're doing when we came to dealing with
our County core services, because we never gave 'em the kind of consideration. So, I just
wanted to say that, and I'm not going to be supporting the motion on the floor.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I will not be supporting the motion myself, because I think we've
done enough to our operations and somebody else gotta take some hits. Okay. All in favor of
the motion, please say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any opposed?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Roll call. Member Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member White.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 2, 2012

COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Aye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member, Chairman Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And the Chair votes "no". Motion carried. Five "ayes", four "noes". Okay.

VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Carroll, Couch, Victorino, and White.
NOES: Chair Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Councilmembers Cochran
and Mateo.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's all, I think. So, I'm going to give some time for Staff to recalculate.
And then, Members, you know, on your adds, the ones that you want to add, please concentrate
on the areas we just completed in removing. Okay. We've taken a lot from operations, and I'm
looking at other areas in, in regards to your recommendation that you want that you want to
make to this Council. I'm going to keep that statement when we come back from our dinner
break. So whatever adds you make, you look for your cuts. And again, operations we've cut to
the bone. We've added to the different funds in regards to supporting the core services. So,
Scott-MR. KANESHINA: Yes?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --if come back at 7:00, you guys should be ready?
MR. KANESHINA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. This is meeting is now in recess `til 7:00. . . . (gavel).. .

RECESS:

5:02 p.m.

RECONVENE:

7:02 p.m.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Okay. Members, I think we going pau early tonight.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Yay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's a kiss of death.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. We not going even talk about real property tax.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Anyway, the Chair will now...I know some of the Members had requested
about adding some, some things that you guys wanted to add into the Budget.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. I'm just going to tell you guys that, you know, we've cut as much as
we can again in operations, and we've put in some monies into different funds to protect this
County. So if you're going to do cuts, it's either going to be raising real property tax or
you...before we raise real property tax, you look into the different programs that we have, that
we had already granted some dollars to and you try to remove some from that programs. Okay.
So we'll, I'll entertain any, anyone at this time. Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman. This would be under Office of the Mayor. On our
exhibit it would be on Page--let me get this right--14, Mr. Chairman and Committee Members. I
have the Lanai Economic Development and Cultural Programs component. And again, well, let
me first state, Chairman, that it has always been my intention and my understanding that when
we, if the Members, you know, initiate or place funds in this type of a program, so whether it be
for Molokai or for Hana, you know, my intention is for it to be part of what I call the community
development, that the request for use of these funds come from the community itself, from their
organizations, their qualified 501(c)(3)'s. It's for our departments to utilize for their needs.
Okay. And, and I just want to state that for the record that I'm hope, you know, my intent is for
this to be applied for and generated from the community itself. So stating that, I am asking for
an upgrade of 19,000, to round it off to $60,000 is my request, and my proposal of how to pay
for it is on Page 6-235 OM-0114, delete that position which is $60,000 in so-called salary costs.
And that's how I plan to pay for it, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Six two...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, can we follow that?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, you went so fast.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: You lost me there.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Six dash two-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Page 6-235
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --three five.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: 35?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. I'm willing to zero-out position 0M-114, Economic Development
Specialist III, which is the Film Commissioner -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --and that's how I'm willing to pay for my request of adding in. If you ask
me where I would put the balance-CHAIR PONTANILLA: What is that amount, 60,000?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --I put it in OPEB. Yeah. That's the position amount at this time,
Chairman, 60,000.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Second.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Is that a-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I don't know if, if you want-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Is that a motion?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Jesus-COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (inaudible).. .
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I don't know if you want to take motions, Chairman, but, you know, I just
telling you what I propose to add and where I'm cutting to pay for my add.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So where is it going, Riki? Can you give us the page numbers?
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Page 14 on your exhibit, Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And where, where on this, this here?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, on this, this format where it was?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: It's page 14.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Page 14-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, I know that; for the, for take out.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Page 14. Oh, no, no...from here.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: From here, where do you minus it?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Right here.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Taken from the book.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But we've been working out of this book, Chair, not the...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah. And then if you're going to take it out, it's going to come out
of Office of the Mayor -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Office of the Mayor.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --Economic Development Administration Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. What, what page is that?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thirteen.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: 13?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, you're so on it, Mr. Couch. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(inaudible). . .
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Economic Development Program, so minus the 60?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Wait.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That would be under Economic Development Program. As I understand it
regarding this money which is part of the A Account, so that could be under Administration.
That's why I wanted to check with the Staff. I not too sure if this is under ED Program or Admin
Program of, of the Office of the Mayor. But I can tell you specifically what I'm willing to cut to
pay for my add.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, we'll one...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That is my proposal, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll take one at a time.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Hang on.
MR. KANESHINA: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
MR. KANESHINA: The number that Mr. Hokama wants to reduce is located in the Economic
Development Program.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
MR. KANESHINA: So, I suppose it'll be off that one..., you know, that 1.064 million that the Mayor's
proposing.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. KANESHINA: So we, we can add on another cut on that if that's what you guys want to do. It's
not in the Admin Program, it's in the Economic Development Program.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Kaneshina. So that's where then I would propose
my $60,000 cut for my $19,000 add, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: From the Economic Development Program.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, from that position.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, that's one.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. That's all I have, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. I not going to entertain no motions yet.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, yeah. I was just going to ask what the procedure's going to be.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. That's Mr. Hokama's-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Add and subtract.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --add and subtract. Okay. Anybody else got? Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I'd recommend, I move for the addition of
245,000 -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What page?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --in...well, let's see, I think it's around Page 12.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Page 12?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, Page 12. Planning, Design and Project Management funding for
a Paukukalo Boys & Girls Club to assist with the transformation of the, of the gym into a Boys &
Girls Club. And the reason I am supportive of this, is this is one of the areas in which -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: How much?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --245,000. And the reason I'm supportive of this project being funded
is that this is an area where we have a lot of disadvantaged kids. One of the, the County's kid of
the year came from Paukukalo, even though they, they have to set up and breakdown their Boys
& Girls Club every day. This will allow them to leverage funding from other agencies. And the
County funds, the County currently doesn't fund any part of that operation. It's funded by other
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agencies. And I think it would be a wonderful show of support for us to provide this level of
assistance. This is not construction of the facility which is on non-County land. I believe it's, I
believe the land is owned by -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Hawaiian Home Lands.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --Hawaiian Homes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Anything else? Where you going get it from?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: TAT, recognizing more TAT. And I guess while I'm, while I'm
speaking I might as well also mention my other project is Kanaha Park. There's a significant
amount of area in Kanaha Park that is still undeveloped but heavily, heavily used by kite
boarders and windsurfers, including residents and classes for visitors, and it doesn't have bath
facilities, it doesn't have much in the way of picnic tables. We've got broad areas for parking
that are unpaved, and it's just not presenting the kind of, of front to visitors and our residents
that, that they deserve in this section of the park. And so I, I would like to have $200,000 to
make some positive upgrades in that area.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Like what?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Pardon?
CHAIR PONTANILLA. Like what, what kind upgrades?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: It would be paving and providing bath facilities, providing water for
planting so that we can plant trees and have a way to provide them with the necessary watering.
And, and the 200 may be more than we need it, but I think that would certainly cover everything.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Where's that going to go?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Where is it going to go?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: You mean where is it going to come from?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, where is it going to go in here.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Oh, it goes in CIP under the Paia-Makawao-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Page?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: It is on Page 23, under General Fund, Paia-Haiku Community Area.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Is it...
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Capital Improvement Projects, on the top of that page.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Is it Paia-Haiku or Kahului?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Pardon?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Is it Paia-Haiku or Kahului-Wailuku?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I believe Kanaha is the edge of Paia.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: It may be in Kahului, but I'm, my recollection is it's in...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And removing from...?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Again from TAT.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Any more? Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I only have one because everything else that I wanted somebody
has taken care of and that's really nice, I have a very short list. The thing that I want to take care
somehow, and I don't know if we can just do it by not having to add any more money, which
would be a proviso in Substance Abuse to help with the Be A Jerk, continuing the MEO
Underage Drinking Prevention Program.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: What page?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, it's, it would come under probably the MEO Youth Services,
which is on page 12. We had already adjusted that from 181,280, and we took out 5,280, so now
it's $176,000. We'd probably add it there. But I was thinking that we could just use money in
the Substance Abuse Fund and not have to add anything more, and the request was for 80,000.
But if we can come up with 50, we might be able to do the program, maybe not as much as they
want or...but I'd like to see something continue. I think too much has been done to let it go and

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Substance Abuse is what page?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Substance Abuse is on Page 11. There's half a million dollars and that's
where BEST is.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So proviso --
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So we could just proviso some of that, and that would help keep that
program going without having to look for any more money. Or if money is an issue, I, too,
would say TAT. So whatever -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Proviso -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --but I'd like to see something for that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --proviso $5,000?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Fifty.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Fifty.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Fifty?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: To who?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: To MEO for the Underage Drinking Program. That's the Be A Jerk
thing.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Meanwhile I'll work hard to try to see if we can do something legislative
so that we can get some State liquor money to take care of this.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's what we're working on right now with the Liquor Department. If we
do find some funding--oh, you got any information?
MR. KANESHINA: Yeah, we got a response.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
MR. KANESHINA: And then according to the Liquor Department, they, that education fund is actually
for the educating of -CHAIR PONTANILLA: The people that sell-MR. KANESHINA: --bartenders and the people that are getting their liquor licenses.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And that's why we have to amend the State law, that is what we have to
do, and we can work on that -- 163 -
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --in the upcoming year. So we may have to do this only once. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, good. Okay, we're going to do that one first. Okay. I see no problems
in moving...a proviso, $50,000 from Substance Abuse to support the MEO Underage Drinking.
So that, that is easy. Members, consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus on that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. The next one is...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Wait. You're still asking for more?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And mine is a proviso as well.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'm trying to find it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I like simple kind, proviso, you know-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --from, taking from one place to the other.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The other ones I, I think we're going to have a lot of discussion.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah. I would like to proviso the Grant for Small Town Management,
70,000 to the NPAC.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Page? Page?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'm trying to find it. Do I have help from the Staff? I didn't see it
under Planning. I may...maybe I missed it.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Planning. It's under Planning
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, yeah. Okay, Page 18, No. 5.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No. 5.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Proviso that 70,000 goes to NPAC.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, I not going touch that money -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --okay, because of the lawsuit-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --that's pending.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And I think, Chair, it is the Planning, Planning Department's idea
once, if, and when that is settled, that if they come in for...they have to come in directly, that
they would rather us not proviso this because that way it gives them the flexibility to work with
the various small towns.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. My intent is to leave the way it is until the lawsuit is settled.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Settled. I agree, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: And if you can make a note of that, Staff, yeah, so that Planning doesn't just
go pick up the money.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah, we going leave 'em alone.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, that's it? Okay, we'll take Mr. Hokama's one first. Lanai, Page 14,
adding $19,000...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And again, Chairman, the balance, you know, I would prefer it go to OPEB,
but if the Committee chooses otherwise, that's fine.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Page 14.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Page 14.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I can, I can support Mr.--first of all, I support Mr. Hokama's
desire for the 19, I have no problem with that and I think there's other places we could take it
from. I'm not sure with this film thing and person and whatever, that at this point I'm not
exactly certain that I want to eliminate any opportunity for leaving that there and giving this, this,
the Economic Development an opportunity to show us what can be done. I, I support
Mr. Hokama's 19, I have no problem, but I'm not sure if I really want to take that 60,000 out of
there and not give them an opportunity, you know, now. I know they can come back if they want
and I guess they can always ask for a budget amendment and all that, but I think we're still at the
stage of trying to decide, or not trying to decide, trying to see where this is going to lead us. So,
I would like to hear from the Department before I, I take the money away from them. I'm all for
giving the 19, no problem. And I kind of have to agree with Mr. White...I, too, would like to
see, first of all, our TAT bumped up by a million, but that's another process that I'm not going
get into that right now.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Okay. I, I'm just going to call Staff in regards to that E/P.
MR. KANESHINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I guess I need clarification. Is, is the goal to reduce it for
that amount or is it the goal to reduce the E/P? Because there's no...the Mayor's Office and the
Legislative Branch, there's no E/P count.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: So right now there's no E/P count?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
MR. KANESHINA: Correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And that's why, Chairman, I specifically gave the position number as
provided in the Details, and they have it under OM-0114. There is no E/P count, correct, like the
Council per se, and that is why I stated specifically the 60,000 is to be taken from the position
that, the funds that pay for the Film Commissioner's position currently. Okay. And again,
currently it was taking it from promotions. Okay. It wasn't from wages and salaries. And my
point is this also, Chairman, even prior to the hiring of this person, yeah, my experience from the
time of last, last year's HSAC, I had more communication, kept more up to speed with the
assistance of Mr. Yamaguchi. He kept me thoroughly apprised of what was happening in the
film component on the Office of the Mayor. And since we've had this new person, I can tell you
that I've had zero communications and zero statuses. You know, so I prefer the old way because
I was kept up to speed in what was happening, especially regarding Lanai. I appreciate that.
And so, for me, I rather go back to the way it was, 'cause I had better service and I still, we still
provide for the County to move forward in its digital media endeavors. But for me at this time,
Chairman, also...you know, I think if we want to make this work, then my message to the Mayor
is we need the right person in it, and I do not believe the current person is the right person for
this job. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I fully support Member Hokama's desire for the money that he
wants for his fund. But I, too, share concerns about taking away the Film Commissioner's
money. I'd like to see that have the opportunity to grow. You know, it's interesting because we
have apparently one perspective of this person, and yet the public was eloquent in their support
of him. And so I don't know enough about it to, to have an opinion. I think it's kinda new. We,
I think we should try to encourage this industry. And by taking away the money for the position,
I don't know if that helps us. So, I understand the need for the money, we have it, I'm sure we
can find it, but I don't know if it's from there.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. Just for clarification, is this one motion or are we
going to vote on Lanai funding and then vote on the...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, I'm taking one at a time. Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. 'Cause I -CHAIR PONTANILLA: And then...
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --I agree that, you know, I'm in support of the funding for Lanai,
but...you know, we've, we're kind of taking a whack at a number of the Economic Development
items in the Budget, and I just don't think that, that's the direction we should be going. I, I
understand that there are some feelings that the person in that position is not doing the job that,
that some of us expect him to be doing. But I think it's...from what the public stated, the public
seemed very, very supportive and feels that the guy is doing a very good job, and I'd like to give
them the opportunity to show us what they can do. And if, if by this time next year we see
results that are, are disappointing, then I would support Mr. Hokama at that time. But I think at
this point, I, I need to keep the money in there for that position and leave it up to the, the Mayor
whether that's the right person in, for the job or not.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Corporation Counsel?
MR. UEOKA: Can we take a short recess, Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure. Short recess. . . .(gavel). . .
RECESS:

7:27 p.m.

RECONVENE:

7:28 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Members, the Chair's intention on this one here is to have Economic Development
come down over here and kind of explain the position to us one more time.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Sounds good.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll come back to this.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. CIP...Hawaiian Home Lands, $250,000 for Boys & Girls Club.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, real quick.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: On his-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Nineteen.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Are you, on his 19...are you going to lump that with the other one or
are you doing two separate things?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: This is all separate. He, his is coming from, you know, whatever he said he
was going to do.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, so it's going to be a one lump sum?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. You know, I'll, I'll take a look at where all this money is going to
come from and then, you know, and just move forward on it.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. 'Cause I know there's support for his 19 but it, the question is
where it comes from is...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. The support for the 19, but his recommendation is to take it out, out of
here -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --okay, and the Chair's intent is to bring Economic Development -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --over here tomorrow, have them explain about the position-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Sure.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --to all of us again.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. The next one is Hawaiian Home Lands, the Boys & Girls Club,
$250,000. And Mr. White kind of explained it, it is to provide construction money for -COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Not, not construction.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Not, not construction. What is it?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: It's, it's for Planning, Design, and Project Management.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. You heard Mr., Mr. White and it's gonna be taken out, out of the TAT,
and you know how I feel about that.
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Well...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, you know, I was asked about this project consideration maybe
two months ago. And I, I gave the organization my...the same response I'll share with my
colleagues this evening in that...I don't feel to take care of Hawaiian Homes project and
property with General Fund. If, you know...if, if they want to match us and say that Hawaiian,
OHA and Hawaiian Homes will put up two-thirds and we put up one-third, I'd be very open to
that. But just to use County General Fund for a specific area that is owned...you know, I mean
what is the revenues from us? Okay. We know what they get exempted from, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. I understand there's, their situation with the youth, but why doesn't
OHA and Hawaiian Homes step up to the plate?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: They're the big trustees of the beneficiaries, direct beneficiaries that they're
entrusted with. Why aren't they anteing, putting up their fair share, you know? Until they
can...and, and my challenge to the organization was show us what they are willing to do for a
responsibility that they have been tasked with, and then come and ask people like me who may
be more open then to the consideration. But not for the General Fund to ante up 100 percent and
those other two key entities put up nothing. You know, I have a problem with that because we're
asking the whole tax base to provide something special for a select group of youth, you know. I,
I would hope OHA and Hawaiian Homes is listening because I really would like them to tell
their beneficiaries why they're not anteing up on this project. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Just a comment from the Chair. I was approached by the same
members who approached Mr. Hokama regarding this here, and what was told of me is very,
very...I have a problem with the Boys & Girls Club. Okay. I'm not going not mention in here
what it was, because I think this is not the place to discuss this matter. In executive session, I
would. Okay. But I'm not supporting that particular move, $250,000, to the Boys & Girls Club
for their Paukukalo facility at this time. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I just wanted to comment. I understand thoroughly Member
Hokama's, you know, what he's saying and what you're saying, and maybe what is going wrong
here is you know with some of these CIPs, they come upon us at Budget time, and it would be so
much better if they were...request made long before Budget and that they could be discussed in
a, in a Committee so that we could bring the principals in and, you know, kind of ferret out
whose, where, and what's happening so that when it comes to asking us for the money, we have
the background. There's too many, you know, he said, you said, she said, but we don't really
have information or letters or anything in front of us, correspondence, that said we asked and
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they said no or we asked for this much and they said you go levy--you know what I mean? So
it's hard to make a decision even though I know all of us have great aloha and would love to see
the children have, you know, good center. But there's just too much information we don't have
to make a decision.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And, and I agree with your comments. Come at the eleventh
hour -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --to tell us what they want in addition, to me, you know, they had ample time
to come to us in regards to their plans, similar to what we are doing with our Finance
Department, Department of Housing and Human Services [sic], as well as the Parks Department
on their move. And, you know, as Council members we should be aware of, of anything that is
planned for this County, not only County government, but for those entities that provide other
services throughout this County. Mr. Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. I also concur with my colleagues and you, and I
would ask that this item be referred to Committee -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: --to the proper Committee.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. We can refer this to the proper Committee or refer this back to the
Administration to look in, you know, what areas this request can go, can go to for, you know,
consideration. For me, you know, at this time of the year, I, I think it's too late. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: This could probably be handled by a budget amendment once we had all
the information, like, you know, these pieces of land we buy and things we do, but we vet it out
and then we can sit here and make a decision. So...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. I'll leave it up to the Administration.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay. The next one--any more discussion on this one here?
Okay. On the next one, Kanaha Park... and Mr. White kind of explained to us and, and the
reason. Chair is not going take action on this either until I get some information from the Parks
Department, and again it should be on a CIP prior to, you know, we...during our Budget
deliberations. So I'll bring the Parks Department in here to talk about it, okay, tomorrow
morning, both Parks and Economic Development.
NOTE: Silence.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 2, 2012

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Anything else?
NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Chair's going to quit...adjourn this meeting and then we'll
reconvene [sic] at 9:00 and we'll take up these two items and then move forward on the real
property tax. Okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Chair. And, Chairman, tomorrow morning then as we enter into our
discussions and potential debate of rates, and I know tomorrow night is our hearing -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --if, if possible, I think it might be helpful for us to know where we stand
with the adds and subtractions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, yeah. I'm going to have Staff do that tonight so that we all know where
we're at -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --as far as the adds.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Okay. Any more comments? If not, the Budget and
Finance Committee meeting is now adjourned. . . . (gavel). . .

ADJOURN:

7:37 p.m.

APPROVED:

dtat=

/.4L

'4SEPH P';

TANILLA, Chair
udget and Finance Committee
bf:min: 1 20502:sjr

Transcribed by: Sandra J. Roman

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 2, 2012

CERTIFICATE

I, Sandra J. Roman, hereby certify that the foregoing represents to the best of my ability, a true
and correct transcript of the proceedings. I further certify that I am not in any way concerned with the
cause.
DATED this 24 th day of May 2012, in Wailuku, Hawaii.

j?/1)11,i-SANDRA J. ROMAN

